
PACKET MODIFICATIONS 
August 9th, 2023 

Addition of updated Town Administrators report used at meeting 
Addition of Financial Statements provided at meeting 
Addition of Audit Extension Request



 

 

 

 

 

  

August 2023 

Town 

Administrator’s 

Report 

Dorris Avenue 

Sewer Line 

Replacement 

Parks, Parking, 

Speed Limits, and 

Crosswalks 

Grant Roadmap 



 

2023 August Town Administrator Report 

 

Dorris Avenue Sewer Line Replacement 

On Schedule for Construction to Begin August 9th  

The City’s contractor, K&D Construction is scheduled to meet 

for a pre-construction meeting on August 8th with Town 

Officials.  

Thanks to a generous Tier I Energy and Mineral Impact 

Assistance grant from the Colorado Department of Local 

Affairs, the Town can fund critical infrastructure needs 

along Dorris Avenue. The project includes replacement of 

approximately 565’ of gravity sanitary sewer line with 

new 8” PVC pipe and (2) 5’ diameter manholes.  

The need for expediting this project was discovered 

while scoping sewer lines through town in preparation of 

creating an inventory of the underground utility assets. It 

was discovered that the vitreous clay pipe underneath 

Dorris Avenue was crumbling at a depth of 16’ deep. This 

precipitated the need to seek $137,756.00 of grant 

funding from DOLA.  

Originally the project was expected to cost $275,512.00, 

but after a competitive Request for Proposals process, 

the winning bid was from K&D Construction, 

$299,399.50. An additional $23,887.50 is expected to be 

budgeted to complete the project.  

 

 K&D Construction was given a Notice of Award on July 

17th, 2023, and they have submitted the documentation 

that they needed to get to the Town prior to issuance of a 

Notice to Proceed. The City’s contractor, K&D 

Construction is scheduled to meet for a pre-construction 

meeting on August 8th with Town Officials.  

Once all documentation is received and signed by both 

parties, a Notice to Proceed will be issued. This is 

especially important since it determines the deadlines 

established in the contract.  

The project is expected to take nearly (45) days to 

complete from the date of the Notice to Proceed, with 

substantial completion being required (30) days after the 

Notice to Proceed is issued. As construction commences, 

this report will be updated to reflect critical milestones, 

or any changes that may be necessary to complete the 

project.  

Public Works Director, Cory Heiniger, is the Town’s Field 

Superintendent for the project. The Town Administrator, 

Stefen Wynn, is the Town’s Project manager.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROJECT 



 

2023 August Town Administrator Report 

 

Parks, Parking, Speed Limits and Crosswalks 

Safe, multi-modal paths for accessing downtown and recreation 

areas 

Staff are working on solutions to accessibility issues 

throughout Town 

During the July 11th, 2023, meeting, the Town 

Administrator was appointed as the ADA Coordinator for 

the Town. Discussion during the meeting centered 

around installing a mid-block crosswalk on Grand 

Avenue within the heart of the business district. Since the 

first meeting in July, other related items have been 

reported, and staff are working on solutions to 

accessibility issues throughout Town. When staff have 

evaluated all items, a complete recommendation will be 

given for the Board’s consideration.  

The Grand Avenue mid-block crosswalk is just one 

crosswalk being considered. Another consideration is 

being given to the crossing from River Park to the 

Trailhead for the School Loop Trail. This crossing may be 

a good location for a Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon 

(RRFB) to alert drivers coming over the bridge (or 

coming to the bridge) of pedestrians walking across the 

street.   

Speed Limits, pedestrian safety and parking were 

discussed during the August 1st Department Head 

meeting. Chief Laiminger and PW Director Heiniger gave 

a presentation on items that they’ve discussed to the 

safety of everyone using Paonia’s streets. Staff are 

considering what it would take to reduce the speed limits 

around parks and schools to 15MPH, and 20MPH in all 

other areas.  

 

 Rio Grande from 3rd to Pan American and Pan American to 

Alder Drive are proposed to be reduced to 15 MPH due to 

the entrance at Apple Valley Park. As part of the proposal, 

staff are developing a plan to reduce the base speed limit in 

town to 20MPH. Provided below is a map showing existing 

speed limits in Town and a map with speed limits being 

worked on in a proposal that will be presented to the Board 

at a later meeting.   

The entrance to the Jumbo Mountain Trailhead has created 

issues with parking. HOA’s near Pan American have asked 

that parking be provided for people using the trails at Apple 

Valley Park. They’ve asked that the top of the hill be used 

only for loading/unloading and ADA parking spaces. Before 

a plan can be implemented that utilizes the park, staff need 

to make sure that this option can be done both safely and 

legally.  

Yield signs throughout Town present problems for 

pedestrians and cyclists. Most of the North/South local 

cross streets have yield signs at intersections with main 

collector roads. Town Staff are working on a plan to make 

most local road intersections regulated with stop signs.  

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

2023 August Town Administrator Report 

 

Grant Roadmap with Projects 

Multiple grants are in various stages for critical infrastructure 

improvements throughout Town. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2023 August Town Administrator Report 

 

Budget 

Planning for 

FY-2024  

State Local Government 

Budget Calendar and 

Budgetary Process for FY-

2024.  

Budget season is upon us, and FY-2022’s audit is due to the Office of the 

State Auditor. The Town is working with Professional Management 

Solutions to make sure that the General Ledger was properly closed at the 

end of FY-2022 for the auditors.  

On the August 8th Board of Trustees Agenda is an Audit Extension Request 

form. This will allow the Town to continue working with Professional 

Management Solutions and the auditors to get an accurate financial audit to 

the state by September 30, 2023.  

The goal for this year’s budget process is collaboration with Department Heads so 

that a better understanding of their departmental needs will be considered in the FY-

2024 Budget. Over the past couple of years, multiple grant applications have been 

awarded and many of them have local match requirements. A Capital Improvement 

Plan will be updated to reflect the local match already encumbered by the projects, 

and any additional funds that may be necessary to complete improvements outside of 

grant-funded projects in FY-2024.  

Revenue Forecasting and Protection of Revenue Streams – The most 

important aspect of preparing a budget is making sure that anticipated revenue is 

accurately forecasted. Accurate revenue forecasts depend on good policy and 

enforcement. To protect revenues, items like properly functioning water meters, code 

enforcement actions on building and improvements, must be implemented. The 

number one source of revenue in the General Fund is from Property Taxes. Ensuring 

that Residents are getting building permits for improvements to their properties is 

critical in making sure that an accurate assessment is completed.  

Budget Process with Department Heads – During the August 29th Department 

Head Meeting, Department Heads will be given budget worksheets to begin putting in 

for their requests in the upcoming FY-2024 Budget. During the meeting Department 

Heads will be given instructions on the worksheets and presented with a template for 

the FY-2024 Budget. Through September, the Town Administrator will include 

insurance renewal premiums and personnel costs in a draft of the Budget.  

Budget Process with Finance Committee and Board of Trustees – 

Throughout the month of September, Town Staff will begin putting together a budget 

for the Finance Committee to consider. A draft of the Budget and Capital 

Improvement Plan will be presented to the Finance Committee on October 2, 2023. 

The Board of Trustees will be presented with a draft of the Budget during the October 

10, 2023, Board Meeting (publication for, “Notice of Budget” must be completed).  

Local Government Budget Calendar from DOLA Found on Next page  

 
 



 

2023 August Town Administrator Report 

 

 



TOWN OF PAONIA

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

JUNE 30, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

09-0102 UBB PAYROLL (                     74.91)

09-0103 UBB MMKT ACCOUNT 2,397,852.27

09-0105 UBB INTERNAL GRANT ACCT 40,912.00

09-0106 UBB - OPS CHECKING ACCT (0733) 441,714.00

09-0107 UTILITY CASH CLEARING ACCOUNT (            179,131.51)

TOTAL COMBINED CASH 2,701,271.85

09-0110 UBB-CERT. OF DEPOSIT(2402) 203,950.52

09-0112 UBB-CERT OF DEP (2578) 261,378.93

09-0114 COLOTRUST-UNRESTRICTED 555,115.09

09-0207 AMAZON INVOICE ACCT 689.63

09-0208 WEX INC/PHILLIPS66 FLEET CARD 1,582.31

09-0100 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (         3,723,988.33)

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH .00

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

10 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL FUND 1,105,705.07

22 ALLOCATION TO STREET CAPITAL FUND 359,862.43

26 ALLOCATION TO SIDEWALK DEPARTMENT 73,370.39

30 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL GRANT FUND (              25,025.00)

40 ALLOCATION TO CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 14,299.59

50 ALLOCATION TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 682,182.73

60 ALLOCATION TO WATER FUND 1,046,955.39

70 ALLOCATION TO WASTEWATER FUND 354,648.21

80 ALLOCATION TO SANITATION FUND 111,989.52

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS 3,723,988.33

ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 09-0100 (         3,723,988.33)

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 2

ASSETS

10-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 1,105,705.07

10-0109 COLOTRUST-BRIDGE RESERVE 613,829.67

10-0116 UBB-PARK CONTRIBUTIONS 12,888.00

10-0140 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 146,513.00

10-0143 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (              19,573.51)

TOTAL ASSETS 1,859,362.23

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

10-0201 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 283.49

10-0215 ACCRUED WAGES (                1,118.16)

10-0216 ACCRUED SS,MED&FWT 36,686.15

10-0217 ACCRUED STATE TAXES 7,825.00

10-0218 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 80.00

10-0219 FPPA 1,989.16

10-0223 HEALTH/LIFE INSURANCE (                8,655.86)

10-0225 AFLAC COVERAGE 96.24

10-0226 THE HARTFORD (                       9.09)

10-0275 DEFERRED BRIDGE RESERVES 320,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 357,176.93

FUND EQUITY

10-0280 FUND BALANCE 1,265,990.30

10-0282 DEFRRED PROPERTY TAXES 146,513.00

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 89,682.00

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 89,682.00

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,502,185.30

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,859,362.23



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 3

TAXES

10-31-01 PROPERTY TAXES 116,873.34 116,873.34 146,513.00 29,639.66 79.8

10-31-02 S.O. AUTO TAXES 9,290.36 9,290.36 23,550.00 14,259.64 39.5

10-31-03 SALES TAX - TOWN 292,228.83 292,228.83 599,400.00 307,171.17 48.8

10-31-04 SALES TAX - COUNTY 88,981.51 88,981.51 169,842.00 80,860.49 52.4

10-31-05 SALES TAX - STATE MARIJUANA 10,206.20 10,206.20 29,100.00 18,893.80 35.1

10-31-06 CIGARETTE TAX 613.05 613.05 1,350.00 736.95 45.4

10-31-07 FRANCHISE TAX 49,927.30 49,927.30 49,910.00 (                     17.30) 100.0

10-31-08 PENALTY & INTEREST 16.31 16.31 400.00 383.69 4.1

10-31-09 DELINQUENT TAX .00 .00 15.00 15.00 .0

TOTAL TAXES 568,136.90 568,136.90 1,020,080.00 451,943.10 55.7

LICENSES AND PERMITS

10-32-01 LIQUOR LICENSES 1,375.00 1,375.00 5,000.00 3,625.00 27.5

10-32-02 MISCELLANEOUS PERMITS 5,420.00 5,420.00 1,675.00 (                3,745.00) 323.6

10-32-03 BUILDING PERMITS 14,166.88 14,166.88 60,000.00 45,833.12 23.6

10-32-04 SPECIAL REVIEWS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-32-06 VIN INSPECTIONS 510.00 510.00 1,500.00 990.00 34.0

TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 21,471.88 21,471.88 69,175.00 47,703.12 31.0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

10-33-01 HIGHWAY USERS TAX 23,562.36 23,562.36 49,916.00 26,353.64 47.2

10-33-02 MOTOR VEHICLE - $1.50 601.58 601.58 2,600.00 1,998.42 23.1

10-33-03 MOTOR VEHICLE - $2.50 1,381.68 1,381.68 3,800.00 2,418.32 36.4

10-33-07 SEVERANCE TAX .00 .00 4,025.00 4,025.00 .0

10-33-08 MINERAL LEASING .00 .00 10,335.00 10,335.00 .0

10-33-10 ROAD & BRIDGE 6,320.03 6,320.03 8,125.00 1,804.97 77.8

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 31,865.65 31,865.65 78,801.00 46,935.35 40.4

FINES AND FORFEITURES

10-34-01 COURT FINES .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-34-02 POLICE FINES 1,290.00 1,290.00 21,000.00 19,710.00 6.1

10-34-03 MISCELLANEOUS FINES-BONDS 15.00 15.00 200.00 185.00 7.5

10-34-04 OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS-PD 112,857.98 112,857.98 239,580.00 126,722.02 47.1

10-34-05 DOG TAGS 190.00 190.00 300.00 110.00 63.3

10-34-50 PD GRANT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 114,352.98 114,352.98 271,280.00 156,927.02 42.2



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 4

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

10-35-01 RENTS & ROYALTIES 615.00 615.00 8,567.00 7,952.00 7.2

10-35-02 MOTOR FUEL TAX REFUNDS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-35-04 INTEREST INCOME 29,246.75 29,246.75 27,800.00 (                1,446.75) 105.2

10-35-05 LATE CHARGES 4,305.00 4,305.00 6,150.00 1,845.00 70.0

10-35-06 OTHER INCOME 49.60 49.60 10.00 (                     39.60) 496.0

10-35-15 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES 45,635.12 45,635.12 4,200.00 (              41,435.12) 1086.6

10-35-16 RESTITUTION 3,950.57 3,950.57 4,800.00 849.43 82.3

10-35-20 GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 543,350.00 543,350.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 83,802.04 83,802.04 595,877.00 512,074.96 14.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 819,629.45 819,629.45 2,035,213.00 1,215,583.55 40.3



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 5

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

10-41-01 MAYOR & TRUSTEES 800.00 800.00 .00 (                   800.00) .0

10-41-02 TOWN ADMIN/CONTRACT LABOR 80,941.79 80,941.79 .00 (              80,941.79) .0

10-41-03 SALARIES & WAGES 29,147.00 29,147.00 113,937.25 84,790.25 25.6

10-41-04 EMPLOYER FICA 1,871.48 1,871.48 7,057.71 5,186.23 26.5

10-41-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 437.65 437.65 1,650.59 1,212.94 26.5

10-41-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 52.74 52.74 312.70 259.96 16.9

10-41-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 2,538.51 2,538.51 21,722.16 19,183.65 11.7

10-41-08 PENSION BENEFITS 1,097.11 1,097.11 9,780.98 8,683.87 11.2

10-41-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION .00 .00 148.00 148.00 .0

10-41-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,963.90 2,963.90 6,075.00 3,111.10 48.8

10-41-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 2,154.02 2,154.02 1,585.00 (                   569.02) 135.9

10-41-17 POSTAGE 2.40 2.40 550.00 547.60 .4

10-41-20 LEGAL SERVICES 37,083.30 37,083.30 63,844.53 26,761.23 58.1

10-41-21 AUDIT & BUDGET EXPENSE .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

10-41-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 470.58 470.58 .00 (                   470.58) .0

10-41-25 TOWN HALL EXPENSE 5,635.02 5,635.02 13,200.00 7,564.98 42.7

10-41-26 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 4,063.60 4,063.60 4,850.00 786.40 83.8

10-41-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 2,989.59 2,989.59 3,333.00 343.41 89.7

10-41-28 UTILITIES 2,330.65 2,330.65 6,175.00 3,844.35 37.7

10-41-29 TELEPHONE 836.01 836.01 2,700.00 1,863.99 31.0

10-41-30 PUBLISHING & ADS 5,846.52 5,846.52 5,030.00 (                   816.52) 116.2

10-41-31 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 7,493.61 7,493.61 12,386.00 4,892.39 60.5

10-41-33 DATA PROCESSING 2,442.78 2,442.78 15,080.00 12,637.22 16.2

10-41-43 CULTURAL EVENTS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-41-44 HUMAN SERVICES 3,300.00 3,300.00 4,350.00 1,050.00 75.9

10-41-75 GRANT PROJECTS .00 .00 86,300.00 86,300.00 .0

10-41-90 TREASURER'S FEE 9,529.91 9,529.91 3,300.00 (                6,229.91) 288.8

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT 204,028.17 204,028.17 388,867.92 184,839.75 52.5



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 6

LAW ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

10-42-02 CONTRACT LABOR (JUDGE) 3,300.00 3,300.00 .00 (                3,300.00) .0

10-42-03 SALARIES & WAGES 202,551.25 202,551.25 453,985.35 251,434.10 44.6

10-42-04 EMPLOYER FICA 3,292.11 3,292.11 2,545.84 (                   746.27) 129.3

10-42-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 2,865.26 2,865.26 6,531.72 3,666.46 43.9

10-42-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 415.94 415.94 979.40 563.46 42.5

10-42-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 27,453.97 27,453.97 68,686.23 41,232.26 40.0

10-42-08 PENSION BENEFITS 3,783.77 3,783.77 18,122.81 14,339.04 20.9

10-42-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 10,010.00 10,010.00 9,235.00 (                   775.00) 108.4

10-42-11 FPPA PENSION 13,837.32 13,837.32 33,479.55 19,642.23 41.3

10-42-12 FPPA  D&D 4,789.11 4,789.11 11,903.84 7,114.73 40.2

10-42-15 OFFICE SUPPLES 85.41 85.41 2,250.00 2,164.59 3.8

10-42-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 19,595.07 19,595.07 15,895.00 (                3,700.07) 123.3

10-42-17 POSTAGE .00 .00 170.00 170.00 .0

10-42-20 LEGAL SERVICES 2,492.10 2,492.10 4,130.00 1,637.90 60.3

10-42-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 116.00 116.00 850.00 734.00 13.7

10-42-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 5,063.71 5,063.71 15,958.73 10,895.02 31.7

10-42-26 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 2,484.87 2,484.87 15,900.00 13,415.13 15.6

10-42-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 27,360.99 27,360.99 27,369.00 8.01 100.0

10-42-28 UTILITIES 1,432.37 1,432.37 2,926.00 1,493.63 49.0

10-42-29 TELEPHONE 953.65 953.65 5,460.00 4,506.35 17.5

10-42-30 PUBLISHING & ADS .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-42-31 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 100.00 100.00 8,795.00 8,695.00 1.1

10-42-33 DATA PROCESSING 7,939.28 7,939.28 23,624.00 15,684.72 33.6

10-42-42 CONTRACT SERVICES 8,338.65 8,338.65 .00 (                8,338.65) .0

10-42-44 HUMAN SERVICES 1,044.45 1,044.45 2,111.00 1,066.55 49.5

TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT 349,305.28 349,305.28 731,108.47 381,803.19 47.8

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

10-43-02 CONTRACT LABOR 6,760.00 6,760.00 .00 (                6,760.00) .0

10-43-03 SALARIES & WAGES 1,823.44 1,823.44 58,426.27 56,602.83 3.1

10-43-04 EMPLOYER FICA 86.62 86.62 232.77 146.15 37.2

10-43-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 20.31 20.31 54.44 34.13 37.3

10-43-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 2.84 2.84 11.26 8.42 25.2

10-43-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 129.90 129.90 784.01 654.11 16.6

10-43-08 PENSION BENEFITS 41.80 41.80 353.62 311.82 11.8

10-43-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 25.00 25.00 25.00 .00 100.0

10-43-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-43-17 POSTAGE 1.20 1.20 25.00 23.80 4.8

10-43-20 LEGAL SERVICES 63.90 63.90 1,000.00 936.10 6.4

10-43-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 1,010.12 1,010.12 946.00 (                     64.12) 106.8

10-43-31 DUES & SUBSCRITPIONS 145.00 145.00 145.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL BUILDING DEPARTMENT 10,110.13 10,110.13 62,103.37 51,993.24 16.3



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 7

STREETS DEPARTMENT

10-45-03 SALARIES & WAGES 54,197.26 54,197.26 127,767.51 73,570.25 42.4

10-45-04 EMPLOYER FICA 3,285.50 3,285.50 7,835.29 4,549.79 41.9

10-45-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 768.28 768.28 1,832.45 1,064.17 41.9

10-45-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 108.34 108.34 379.13 270.79 28.6

10-45-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 4,307.95 4,307.95 20,556.74 16,248.79 21.0

10-45-08 PENSION BENEFITS 1,603.90 1,603.90 9,172.88 7,568.98 17.5

10-45-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 3,714.00 3,714.00 4,905.00 1,191.00 75.7

10-45-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 160.00 160.00 .0

10-45-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 117.46 117.46 1,733.00 1,615.54 6.8

10-45-17 POSTAGE .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-45-20 LEGAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES .00 .00 975.00 975.00 .0

10-45-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 9,774.12 9,774.12 10,900.00 1,125.88 89.7

10-45-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 6,163.78 6,163.78 10,456.17 4,292.39 59.0

10-45-25 SHOP EXPENSE 1,783.60 1,783.60 .00 (                1,783.60) .0

10-45-26 TRAVEL & MEETINGS .00 .00 42,750.00 42,750.00 .0

10-45-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 3,736.49 3,736.49 4,061.00 324.51 92.0

10-45-28 UTILITIES 4,865.66 4,865.66 10,770.00 5,904.34 45.2

10-45-29 TELEPHONE 1,271.15 1,271.15 480.00 (                   791.15) 264.8

10-45-30 PUBLISHING & ADS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-45-42 SNOW REMOVAL 12,675.90 12,675.90 15,280.23 2,604.33 83.0

10-45-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 125,000.00 125,000.00 .0

TOTAL STREETS DEPARTMENT 108,373.39 108,373.39 395,164.40 286,791.01 27.4



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 8

PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT

10-46-03 SALARIES & WAGES 31,724.50 31,724.50 65,966.67 34,242.17 48.1

10-46-04 EMPLOYER FICA 1,933.75 1,933.75 4,024.20 2,090.45 48.1

10-46-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 452.23 452.23 941.14 488.91 48.1

10-46-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 63.53 63.53 194.72 131.19 32.6

10-46-07 INSURANCE BENENFITS 1,654.79 1,654.79 10,583.99 8,929.20 15.6

10-46-08 PENSION BENEFITS 1,027.13 1,027.13 2,500.00 1,472.87 41.1

10-46-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 1,594.00 1,594.00 2,566.00 972.00 62.1

10-46-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 105.00 105.00 .0

10-46-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,860.35 1,860.35 6,724.00 4,863.65 27.7

10-46-17 POSTAGE .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-46-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3,005.40 3,005.40 8,080.23 5,074.83 37.2

10-46-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 1,558.55 1,558.55 4,100.00 2,541.45 38.0

10-46-24 RENTALS 957.00 957.00 1,080.00 123.00 88.6

10-46-25 SHOP EXPENSE 343.08 343.08 1,150.00 806.92 29.8

10-46-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 5,542.39 5,542.39 5,539.00 (                       3.39) 100.1

10-46-28 UTILITIES 3,995.30 3,995.30 9,300.00 5,304.70 43.0

10-46-29 TELEPHONE 71.14 71.14 515.00 443.86 13.8

10-46-30 PUBLISHING & ADS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-46-32 FEES & PERMITS 773.45 773.45 750.00 (                     23.45) 103.1

10-46-40 MISCELLANEOUS 3.89 3.89 .00 (                       3.89) .0

10-46-42 CONTRACT SERVICES 1,570.00 1,570.00 3,000.00 1,430.00 52.3

10-46-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 45,750.00 45,750.00 .0

10-46-75 GRANT PROJECTS .00 .00 481,250.00 481,250.00 .0

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMEN 58,130.48 58,130.48 654,269.95 596,139.47 8.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 729,947.45 729,947.45 2,231,514.11 1,501,566.66 32.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 89,682.00 89,682.00 (            196,301.11) (            285,983.11) 45.7



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

STREET CAPITAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 9

ASSETS

22-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 359,862.43

TOTAL ASSETS 359,862.43

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

22-0280 FUND BALANCE 300,552.43

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 59,310.00

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 59,310.00

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 359,862.43

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 359,862.43



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

STREET CAPITAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 10

TAXES

22-31-06 OCCUPATIONAL TAX 59,010.00 59,010.00 192,000.00 132,990.00 30.7

TOTAL TAXES 59,010.00 59,010.00 192,000.00 132,990.00 30.7

LICENSES AND PERMITS

22-32-01 LICENSING FEES 300.00 300.00 9,200.00 8,900.00 3.3

TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 300.00 300.00 9,200.00 8,900.00 3.3

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

22-35-04 GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 792,961.00 792,961.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES .00 .00 792,961.00 792,961.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 59,310.00 59,310.00 994,161.00 934,851.00 6.0



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

STREET CAPITAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 11

EXPENDITURES

22-45-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 1,835,153.43 1,835,153.43 .0

22-45-99 TRANSFERS .00 .00 (            538,000.00) (            538,000.00) .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 .00 1,297,153.43 1,297,153.43 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 1,297,153.43 1,297,153.43 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 59,310.00 59,310.00 (            302,992.43) (            362,302.43) 19.6



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

SIDEWALK DEPARTMENT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 12

ASSETS

26-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 73,370.39

26-0117 ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE 4,913.81

TOTAL ASSETS 78,284.20

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

26-0280 FUND BALANCE 63,218.26

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 15,065.94

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 15,065.94

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 78,284.20

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 78,284.20



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SIDEWALK DEPARTMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 13

SIDEWALK REVENUE

26-30-01 SIDEWALK REVENUE 15,065.94 15,065.94 31,068.00 16,002.06 48.5

TOTAL SIDEWALK REVENUE 15,065.94 15,065.94 31,068.00 16,002.06 48.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 15,065.94 15,065.94 31,068.00 16,002.06 48.5



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SIDEWALK DEPARTMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 14

EXPENDITURES

26-45-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE .00 .00 13,750.00 13,750.00 .0

26-45-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY-SIDEWALK .00 .00 80,588.76 80,588.76 .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 .00 94,338.76 94,338.76 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 94,338.76 94,338.76 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 15,065.94 15,065.94 (              63,270.76) (              78,336.70) 23.8



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL GRANT FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:06AM       PAGE: 15

ASSETS

30-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND (              25,025.00)

30-0112 UBB-GRANT PASS THRU 25,025.00

TOTAL ASSETS .00



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 16

ASSETS

40-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 14,299.59

40-0102 UBB-CONSERVATION TRUST 10,421.22

TOTAL ASSETS 24,720.81

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

40-0280 FUND BALANCE 21,680.38

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 3,040.43

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 3,040.43

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 24,720.81

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 24,720.81



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 17

CONSERVATION TRUST REVENUES

40-38-01 CONSERVATION TRUST FUND-REV. 3,038.75 3,038.75 9,250.00 6,211.25 32.9

40-38-02 INTEREST INCOME 1.68 1.68 15.00 13.32 11.2

TOTAL CONSERVATION TRUST REVENUES 3,040.43 3,040.43 9,265.00 6,224.57 32.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 3,040.43 3,040.43 9,265.00 6,224.57 32.8



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 18

40-46-20 EXPENDITURES-CONS. TRUST .00 .00 30,845.75 30,845.75 .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 46 .00 .00 30,845.75 30,845.75 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 30,845.75 30,845.75 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 3,040.43 3,040.43 (              21,580.75) (              24,621.18) 14.1



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 19

ASSETS

50-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 682,182.73

TOTAL ASSETS 682,182.73

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

50-0280 FUND BALANCE 594,962.93

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 87,219.80

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 87,219.80

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 682,182.73

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 682,182.73



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 20

TAXES

50-31-03 SALES TAX - CAP. IMPROVEMENTS 84,032.30 84,032.30 299,700.00 215,667.70 28.0

50-31-06 AIRPORT REVENUE 3,187.50 3,187.50 7,650.00 4,462.50 41.7

50-31-07 GRANT INCOME .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

TOTAL TAXES 87,219.80 87,219.80 332,350.00 245,130.20 26.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 87,219.80 87,219.80 332,350.00 245,130.20 26.2



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 21

CAPITAL OUTLAY

50-70-20 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 552,874.51 552,874.51 .0

50-70-30 CAPITAL PROJECT .00 .00 61,844.25 61,844.25 .0

50-70-99 TRANSFERS .00 .00 346,000.00 346,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 960,718.76 960,718.76 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 960,718.76 960,718.76 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 87,219.80 87,219.80 (            628,368.76) (            715,588.56) 13.9



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

WATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 22

ASSETS

60-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 1,046,955.39

60-0101 CASH ON HAND 225.00

60-0117 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 209,202.07

60-0152 INVENTORY OF SUPPLIES 117,912.43

60-0160 LAND & WATER RIGHTS 49,124.98

60-0162 WATER PLANT 7,574,938.34

60-0164 RESERVOIRS 220,652.10

60-0166 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 4,187,566.31

60-0172 EQUIPMENT 199,464.97

60-0173 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (         4,495,238.37)

TOTAL ASSETS 9,110,803.22

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

60-0201 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 22,116.43

60-0241 DEBT PAYABLE-WPA 2,075,568.84

60-0242 DEBT PREMIUM - WPA 16,146.90

60-0243 DEBT PAYABLE-WPA-ACCR INT 17,882.68

60-0245 LOAN PAYABLE-DWRF-1MG-11/5/08 163,404.80

60-0246 LOAN PAYABLE-DWRF-1MG-ACCR INT 476.60

60-0260 DEFERED GRANT REVENUE 184,616.40

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,480,212.65

FUND EQUITY

60-0280 RETAINED EARNINGS 6,496,961.85

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 133,628.72

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 133,628.72

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 6,630,590.57

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 9,110,803.22



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 23

WATER REVENUES

60-36-01 WATER CHARGES 419,382.64 419,382.64 910,177.00 490,794.36 46.1

60-36-02 WATER USAGE 133,817.79 133,817.79 433,897.00 300,079.21 30.8

60-36-03 SALES & SERVICES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

60-36-04 STANDBY TAP FEES 30,939.32 30,939.32 58,955.00 28,015.68 52.5

60-36-05 BULK WATER 9,852.65 9,852.65 8,100.00 (                1,752.65) 121.6

60-36-09 PENALTIES 3,125.00 3,125.00 4,525.00 1,400.00 69.1

60-36-12 RENTS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

60-36-30 GRANT FUNDS .00 .00 1,119,232.78 1,119,232.78 .0

TOTAL WATER REVENUES 597,117.40 597,117.40 2,537,886.78 1,940,769.38 23.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 597,117.40 597,117.40 2,537,886.78 1,940,769.38 23.5



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 24

WATER OPERATIONS

60-50-03 SALARIES & WAGES 135,385.36 135,385.36 284,781.59 149,396.23 47.5

60-50-04 EMPLOYER FICA 8,170.72 8,170.72 17,216.48 9,045.76 47.5

60-50-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 1,910.95 1,910.95 4,026.44 2,115.49 47.5

60-50-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 270.52 270.52 833.06 562.54 32.5

60-50-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 13,604.15 13,604.15 51,401.91 37,797.76 26.5

60-50-08 PENSION BENEFITS 4,579.21 4,579.21 19,326.70 14,747.49 23.7

60-50-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 6,061.00 6,061.00 4,080.00 (                1,981.00) 148.6

60-50-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES 128.99 128.99 975.00 846.01 13.2

60-50-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 11,605.98 11,605.98 43,666.00 32,060.02 26.6

60-50-17 POSTAGE 1,170.77 1,170.77 5,160.00 3,989.23 22.7

60-50-20 LEGAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES 27,851.17 27,851.17 31,000.00 3,148.83 89.8

60-50-21 AUDIT/BUDGET .00 .00 13,000.00 13,000.00 .0

60-50-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 48,918.52 48,918.52 241,752.78 192,834.26 20.2

60-50-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 2,264.65 2,264.65 9,000.00 6,735.35 25.2

60-50-24 RENTALS 402.00 402.00 400.00 (                       2.00) 100.5

60-50-25 SHOP EXPENSE 4,751.29 4,751.29 7,140.00 2,388.71 66.5

60-50-26 TRAVEL & MEETINGS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

60-50-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 29,519.15 29,519.15 28,612.00 (                   907.15) 103.2

60-50-28 UTILITIES 12,152.69 12,152.69 30,250.00 18,097.31 40.2

60-50-29 TELEPHONE 1,332.89 1,332.89 4,776.00 3,443.11 27.9

60-50-30 PUBLISHING & ADS 170.33 170.33 445.00 274.67 38.3

60-50-31 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,732.89 8,732.89 20,670.00 11,937.11 42.3

60-50-32 FEES & PERMITS 3,953.30 3,953.30 10,635.00 6,681.70 37.2

60-50-33 DATA PROCESSING 6,208.50 6,208.50 21,393.00 15,184.50 29.0

60-50-42 CONTRACT SERVICES 14,880.00 14,880.00 18,000.00 3,120.00 82.7

60-50-44 NORRIS RETIREMENT 20,720.00 20,720.00 13,440.00 (                7,280.00) 154.2

60-50-50 WATER POWER AUTHORITY LOAN 87,071.95 87,071.95 192,500.00 105,428.05 45.2

60-50-51 DRINKING WATER REVOLVING FUND 11,671.70 11,671.70 23,345.00 11,673.30 50.0

60-50-52 FCNB INTERIM FINANCING .00 .00 495.00 495.00 .0

60-50-75 GRANT PROJECTS .00 .00 1,393,947.78 1,393,947.78 .0

TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS 463,488.68 463,488.68 2,494,768.74 2,031,280.06 18.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 463,488.68 463,488.68 2,494,768.74 2,031,280.06 18.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 133,628.72 133,628.72 43,118.04 (              90,510.68) 309.9



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

WASTEWATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 25

ASSETS

70-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 354,648.21

70-0104 UBB-WWTP CHECKING 58,608.94

70-0109 COLOTRUST-SEWER ACCOUNT 553,122.81

70-0110 COLOTRUST-DEBT RESRV ACCOUNT 111,452.09

70-0117 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 125,566.48

70-0150 INVENTORY OF SUPPLIES 12,369.88

70-0160 LAND 564,379.90

70-0164 COLLECT SYSTEM 783,773.24

70-0166 TREATMENT PLANT 4,581,527.37

70-0172 EQUIPMENT 99,059.60

70-0173 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (         1,861,984.96)

TOTAL ASSETS 5,382,523.56

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

70-0201 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (              16,735.08)

70-0222 AMCO REFINANCE BOND 1,600,000.00

70-0223 BOND PREMIUM 44,255.33

70-0240 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 12,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,639,520.25

FUND EQUITY

70-0280 RETAINED EARNINGS 3,904,291.53

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (            161,288.22)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (            161,288.22)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,743,003.31

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,382,523.56



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WASTEWATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 26

WASTEWATER OPERATING REVENUE

70-37-01 SEWER CHARGES - RECEIVED 378,211.88 378,211.88 759,660.00 381,448.12 49.8

70-37-04 SEWER TAPS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

70-37-09 INTEREST INCOME 16,051.35 16,051.35 20,760.00 4,708.65 77.3

TOTAL WASTEWATER OPERATING REVENU 394,263.23 394,263.23 790,420.00 396,156.77 49.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 394,263.23 394,263.23 790,420.00 396,156.77 49.9



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WASTEWATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 27

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS

70-51-03 SALARIES & WAGES 75,085.70 75,085.70 165,240.40 90,154.70 45.4

70-51-04 EMPLOYER FICA 4,534.43 4,534.43 10,563.72 6,029.29 42.9

70-51-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 1,060.49 1,060.49 2,470.55 1,410.06 42.9

70-51-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 150.10 150.10 340.76 190.66 44.1

70-51-07 INSURANCE BENENITS 6,503.28 6,503.28 37,331.58 30,828.30 17.4

70-51-08 PENSION BENENFITS 2,199.22 2,199.22 7,600.00 5,400.78 28.9

70-51-10 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 1,820.00 1,820.00 1,110.00 (                   710.00) 164.0

70-51-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES 94.64 94.64 275.00 180.36 34.4

70-51-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 2,132.82 2,132.82 15,799.00 13,666.18 13.5

70-51-17 POSTAGE 806.87 806.87 2,700.00 1,893.13 29.9

70-51-20 LEGAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES 5,596.48 5,596.48 1,000.00 (                4,596.48) 559.7

70-51-21 AUDIT/BUDGET .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

70-51-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 344,380.09 344,380.09 120,782.21 (            223,597.88) 285.1

70-51-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 2,254.36 2,254.36 10,839.62 8,585.26 20.8

70-51-25 SHOP EXPENSE 7,005.79 7,005.79 4,225.00 (                2,780.79) 165.8

70-51-26 TRAVEL & MEETINGS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

70-51-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 9,704.23 9,704.23 11,846.00 2,141.77 81.9

70-51-28 UTILITIES 10,940.71 10,940.71 39,725.00 28,784.29 27.5

70-51-29 TELEPHONE 1,006.10 1,006.10 1,968.00 961.90 51.1

70-51-30 PUBLISHING & ADS .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

70-51-31 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 266.30 266.30 572.00 305.70 46.6

70-51-32 FEES & PERMITS 857.82 857.82 6,495.00 5,637.18 13.2

70-51-33 DATA PROCESSING 5,902.02 5,902.02 13,469.00 7,566.98 43.8

70-51-43 GAGING STATION .00 .00 4,100.00 4,100.00 .0

70-51-51 RURAL DEVELOPMENT P&I 73,250.00 73,250.00 .00 (              73,250.00) .0

70-51-54 DEBT RESERVE .00 .00 108,625.00 108,625.00 .0

70-51-61 OVERTIME- WASTEWATER .00 .00 5,142.16 5,142.16 .0

70-51-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

TOTAL WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 555,551.45 555,551.45 680,420.00 124,868.55 81.7

DEPRECIATION

70-59-90 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 110,000.00 110,000.00 .0

TOTAL DEPRECIATION .00 .00 110,000.00 110,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 555,551.45 555,551.45 790,420.00 234,868.55 70.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (            161,288.22) (            161,288.22) .00 161,288.22 .0



TOWN OF PAONIA

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

SANITATION FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 28

ASSETS

80-0100 CASH IN COMBINED CASH FUND 111,989.52

80-0117 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 54,089.97

80-0172 EQUIPMENT 289,017.84

80-0173 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (            153,731.84)

TOTAL ASSETS 301,365.49

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

80-0201 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (                1,007.69)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (                1,007.69)

FUND EQUITY

80-0280 FUND BALANCE 272,106.05

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 30,267.13

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 30,267.13

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 302,373.18

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 301,365.49



TOWN OF PAONIA

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SANITATION FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 29

SANITATION OPERATING REVENUE

80-30-02 TRASH CHARGES 161,561.54 161,561.54 330,335.00 168,773.46 48.9

80-30-03 X-TRASH 600.00 600.00 2,500.00 1,900.00 24.0

TOTAL SANITATION OPERATING REVENUE 162,161.54 162,161.54 332,835.00 170,673.46 48.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 162,161.54 162,161.54 332,835.00 170,673.46 48.7



TOWN OF PAONIA

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SANITATION FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 50 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  08/03/2023     10:07AM       PAGE: 30

SANITATION OPERATIONS

80-52-03 SALARIES & WAGES 78,008.78 78,008.78 176,249.93 98,241.15 44.3

80-52-04 EMPLOYER FICA 4,714.77 4,714.77 10,817.49 6,102.72 43.6

80-52-05 EMPLOYER MEDICARE 1,102.76 1,102.76 2,529.90 1,427.14 43.6

80-52-06 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 155.95 155.95 523.43 367.48 29.8

80-52-07 INSURANCE BENEFITS 7,026.73 7,026.73 25,665.44 18,638.71 27.4

80-52-08 PENSION BENEFITS 2,117.80 2,117.80 10,367.38 8,249.58 20.4

80-52-10 WORKMEN'S COMP 7,277.00 7,277.00 5,615.00 (                1,662.00) 129.6

80-52-15 OFFICE SUPPLIES 67.64 67.64 370.00 302.36 18.3

80-52-16 OPERATING SUPPLIES 535.47 535.47 1,856.00 1,320.53 28.9

80-52-17 POSTAGE 517.12 517.12 1,525.00 1,007.88 33.9

80-52-20 LEGAL SERVICES 1,789.20 1,789.20 .00 (                1,789.20) .0

80-52-21 AUDIT/BUDGET .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

80-52-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 45.25 45.25 375.00 329.75 12.1

80-52-23 VEHICLE EXPENSE 2,370.45 2,370.45 21,433.81 19,063.36 11.1

80-52-25 SHOP EXPENSE 1,035.05 1,035.05 1,873.50 838.45 55.3

80-52-27 INSURANCE & BONDS 6,585.45 6,585.45 7,481.00 895.55 88.0

80-52-28 UTILITIES 1,608.86 1,608.86 2,727.00 1,118.14 59.0

80-52-29 TELEPHONE 771.16 771.16 480.00 (                   291.16) 160.7

80-52-30 PUBLISHING & ADS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

80-52-33 DATA PROCESSING 970.97 970.97 2,980.00 2,009.03 32.6

80-52-42 LANDFILL FEES 15,194.00 15,194.00 38,220.00 23,026.00 39.8

TOTAL SANITATION OPERATIONS 131,894.41 131,894.41 315,189.88 183,295.47 41.9

DEPRECIATION

80-59-90 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 17,646.00 17,646.00 .0

TOTAL DEPRECIATION .00 .00 17,646.00 17,646.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 131,894.41 131,894.41 332,835.88 200,941.47 39.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 30,267.13 30,267.13 (                         .88) (              30,268.01) 34394



 

 

Request for Extension of Time to File Audit for Year End December 31, 2022 
ONLY 

 
Requests may be submitted via internet portal: https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg. 
 

Government Name: Town of Paonia 

Name of Contact: 
Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator & 
Treasurer 

Address: 214 Grand Ave.  

City/Zip Code Paonia, CO 81428 

Phone Number: (970) 527-4101 

E-mail StefenW@townofpaonia.com 

Fiscal Year Ending (mm/dd/yyyy): 12/31/2022 

Amount of Time Requested (in days): 
(Not to exceed 60 calendar days)  

60 days 
Audit Due: 

September 30, 2023 

Comments (optional): 

Due to turnover in the management 
and finance departments, an 
extension is being requested. 

 
I understand that if the audit is not submitted within the approved extension of time, the                 
government named in the extension request will be considered in default without further notice, 
and the State Auditor shall take further action as prescribed by Section 29-1-606(5)(b), C.R.S. 
 

  Must be signed by a member of the governing board. 
      
 
 

Signature  

Printed Name: Mary Bachram 

Title: Mayor 

Date: August 8, 2023 

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
mailto:StefenW@townofpaonia.com


 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 08, 2023 6:30 PM 
 

 

 

Public Participation: Must raise hand and be recognized by the Mayor, come to the podium and state your 

name and the street on which you live. Time limit is 3 minutes, one time per item. Direct all comments to the 

Mayor. No responses will be made by staff or Board during the meeting. No derogatory or demeaning 

statements or public displays. Please be respectful. 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
August 23 2023 at 4 pm - Joint Work Session with Board of Trustees and Planning Commission to review first 

draft of Master Plan. 

Public Comment 
Any topic not included on the agenda, 3-minute time limit. 

Consent Agenda 
 

 

 

1. Minutes 

July 11, 2023 Regular Meeting 

July 25, 2023 Regular Meeting 

Disbursements 

Retail Marijuana License Renewal 

Valley High LLC 

Special Event Liquor License 

North Fork Valley Creative Coalition - Mountain Harvest Festival 

Staff Reports 
First Street Fence Encroachment – Town Attorney Update 

Town Administrator 

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND HOUSING ACTION PLAN - Town Board Update 

Police Chief 

     Progress Report 

     Blotter 

Public Works Director 

 

Actions & Presentations 

Public comments must be related to the agenda item, 3-minute time limit. 

1. Resolution 12 - 2023 Clarifying North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee and Liaison 

2. Appointing Town Administrator as liaison to the North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee 

 

 

Mayor & Trustee Reports 

 

 

1



 

Adjournment 
  

2



 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

 

3



 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the event the Board plans to discuss more than 

one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

 

Minutes 

5



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

July 11, 2023 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Mayor Bachran calls the meeting to order at 6:30 pm 

 

Roll Call 
 

PRESENT 

Mayor Mary Bachran 

Mayor Pro-Tem Thomas Markle 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

Trustee Paige Smith 

Trustee John Valentine 

Trustee Rick Stelter 

Trustee Morgan MacInnis 

 

Correspondence Received 
 

The Board asked questions about Stewert Mesa Ditch having a private irrigation line in the 

Town's storm drain. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Markle to approve the agenda. 

 

Announcements 
Mayor Pro-Tem Markle clarifies comments made during the July 11, 2023 Work Session. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Simth to direct the Mayor to 

produce a letter that demonstrates her understanding of the rights of citizen and Trustees to speak 

without being censored. 

 

Discussion includes; subject being more appropriate for the Town Attorney, First Amendment, 

proper use of Points of Order, not censoring speech because of disagreement of the opinion, 

limits of free speech, laws of the land, meeting decorum vs legal liability, personality clashes and 

understanding the law. 

 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Markle 

Voting Nay: Trustee Knutson, Trustee Smith, Trustee Valentine, Trustee Stelter, Trustee 

MacInnis  

 

The motion fails.      

6



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

The Town did receive the second installment of the "Revitalizing Main Streets" gran. The 5th & 

Grand project now has $1,010,592.00. 

 

Public Comment 
 

S. Watson: asks questions about Zoom display names and comments about building inspector 

costs.  

 

C. Patterson: comments about ClearGov and Caselle. 

 

Consent Agenda 
Trustee Stelter makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee MacInnis to approve the consent agenda. 

 

Trustee Smith makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Knutson, to move disbursements from the 

consent agenda. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Main Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Disbursements 
 

Discussion includes credits on ledger, 2 more payments added totaling $7,056.25, chart of 

account changes, tracking revenue, happy to see the new layout. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

C. Patterson: agrees with Mayor Pro-Tem Markle and wonders if the audits will go faster. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Valentine to approve disbursements. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Staff Reports 
 

Interim Town Administrator 

 

Introduces new Town Administrator, Stefen Wynn, recognizes Town Staff and their dedication. 

 

Discussion topics include DOLA, planning grants, salary allocations and water companies. 

 

Police Chief 

 

Discussion includes speed data, increased park patrols, summer trends, department promotion, 

positive police department culture and introducing promoted officers to the Board. 

7



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 

Public Works Director 

 

Jeremiah Garcia passed his Wastewater Certification Test. Congratulations! 

 

Police and Public Works Departments thank Crossroads Baptist Church from Texas; for 

approximately 220 hours of volunteer work, they did for the Town helping to get the parks ready. 

 

Water Treatment Plant is completely repaired now. 

Actions & Presentations 

 

1. Swearing in of Town Administrator Stefen Wynn - Deputy Town Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

New Town Administrator Stefen Wynn is sworn in. 

 

The Town also recognizes and thanks outgoing Interim Administrator Leslie Klusmire for her 

exemplary leadership and hard work she has done on behalf of the Board, staff and community. 

 

2. Designation of handicapped parking at Town Park - Trustee Knutson & Trustee Stelter 

 

Trustee Stelter introduces the subject and how, during events, there are no parking spots at the 

Town Park for those with mobility issues. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Patterson: questions about where they would be. 

 

A. Deluca: offers suggestions for placement based off of what event organizers have designated 

during events successfully. 

 

S. Watson: asks about whose responsibility it will be to keep them clear of snow and ice. 

 

Police Chief Laiminger offers some suggestions to placement of both permanent and temporary 

handicapped parking. 

 

Trustee Knutsonmakes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter to direct staff to make appropriate 

arrangements for handicapped parking at Town Park. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Markle, to designate Town 

Administrator Wynn as the Town's ADA coordinator. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

8



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

 

3. Discussion and decisions on parking at the top of Pan American and Vista Drive - Trustee 

Stelter & Trustee Knutson 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter, to move this discussion to the 

next regular meeting. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

4. Consider a mid-block Pedestrian crosswalk on Grand Avenue - Trustee Knutson & Trustee 

Stelter 

 

Trustee Knutson explains why they feel there is a need to add a midblock crosswalk on Grand 

Avenue 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Watson: worries that it will be a safety issue for out-of-town visitors and cause confusion. 

 

S. Patterson: wonders if moving the handicapped spaces to the end of blocks would be better. 

 

The Board moves to look at Grand Avenue where the crosswalk is being suggested. 

 

The meeting resumes and Board discussion includes parking loss, safety issues & visibility. 

 

Town Administrator Wynn as the ADA coordinator wouldn't recommend the current plan with 

angled parking and would like to gather more information. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter to table this item. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

5. Ratifying Health Insurance Employer Contributions  

 

Trustee Knutson apologizes for adding confusion about this topic at the last meeting and explains 

since then he has had the opportunity to see what other municipalities are currently paying in 

contributions and it has changed his opinion on the subject. 

 

Lorraine Trotter, Professional Management Solutions, is in attendance by Zoom to give an 

overview of the Town's financial situation based on past revenue growth, expenditure and 

liability information and fund balances. 

 

Interim Administrator Klusmire explains that she is still recommending the plan she put forth at 

the last meeting and explains the cost difference between what the Board voted on at the last 

meeting and the plan she is recommending. 

9



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Town Attorney Cotten-Baez explains some potential liability issues  with the situation and gives 

his recommendation on how to move forward. 

 

Board discussion includes employee shares, Town contribution share, retaining employees, 

notification requirements, insurance rates and budget season. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter, to accept the Employer 

contribution plan that Administrator Klusmire has put forth. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

6. Consideration and approval of Resolution 10- 2023 Roles and Responsibilities of Committee's 

 

Town Attorney Cotten-Baez explains the resolution, the definitions on advisory committees, 

liaisons, committee authority and the roles of committees in tandem with the Boards legislative 

authority. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Watson: Question about discussion parameters. 

 

Board discussion includes transparency, who appoints, noticing requirements, public 

participation, confidentiality, Tree Board and Government Affairs committee. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Smith, that Resolution 10 - 2023 be 

adopted with the following amendments: meeting posting requirements and that committee 

appointments be made by the full Board and add water, sewer, trash to the second whereas. 

 

Voting Yea: Trustee Knutson 

Voting Nay: Mayor Pro-Tem Markle, Trustee Smith, Trustee Valentine, Trustee Stelter, Trustee 

MacInnis.   

 

The motion fails. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee MacInnis, that Resolution 10-2023 be 

adopted with the following amendments: committee appointments be made by the full Board and 

adding water, sewer and trash to the second whereas. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

 

7. Consideration and Approval of Resolution 08-2023: Appointment of Officer- Town 

Administrator and Treasurer 

 

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Markle, to approve Resolution 08-

2023: Appointment of Officer – Town Administrator and Treasurer. 

10



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

8. Consideration and Approval of Resolution 09-2023 Authorized Signatories on Accounts 

 

Trustee Smith makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter to adopt Resolution 09-2023 

Authorized Signatories on Accounts. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

9. Consideration and approval of R 2023-11 Remote Meetings and Participation 

 

Town Attorney Cotten-Baez explains the different policies and issues he tried to address in the 

Resolution including clarification of acceptable remote attendance and provisions for quasi-

judicial proceedings. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Watson: wonders if remote participants always time have to prepare. 

 

Board discussion includes new technology and standards of participation for remote meetings.  

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter, to accept Resolution 11-

2023 Remote Meetings and Participation. 

 

Motion passes unanimously. 

 

10. Opportunity to attend Colorado Growing Water Smart Workshop in October 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Stelter, to have Trustee Smith and 

Trustee Valentine work with staff to develop a team proposal. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

11. Approval of award of bid to K&D Construction (low bidder) for replacement of Dorris 

Avenue sewer line and authorize Town Administrator to negotiate final contract. 

 

Trustee Smith makes a motion, seconded by Trustee MacInnis to approve awarding of bid to 

K&D Construction for replacement of Dorris Avenue sewer line and authorize Town 

Administrator to negotiate final contract. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

12. Consideration and approval of granting Accountant/Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro view 

only electronic access to Town bank accounts. 

 

11



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Markle to approve granting 

Accountant/Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro view only, electronic access to Town bank accounts. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

13. Consideration and approval to write an EIAF grant to DOLA for $1,000,000 to help fund the 

relining of the 2-million-gallon tank 

 

Trustee MacInnis makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter, to approve the Mayor writing an 

EIAF grant to DOLA for $1,000,000 to help fund the relining of the 2-million-gallon tank. 

  

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

14. Consideration and Approval to write a grant of up to $6500 to the Colorado State Internet 

Portal Authority for expert help on the audio-visual system in Town Hall. 

 

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, seconded by Trustee MacInnis to approve the Mayor writing a 

grant of up to $6500.00 to the Colorado State Internet Portal Authority for help on the audio-

visual system in Town Hall. 

 

Public comment: 

 

S. Watson: questions about timestamping meeting video and linking to agenda items 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

15. Consideration and Approval of River District Grant Agreement 

 

Trustee Smith makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Stelter, to approve the Mayor signing the 

River District Grant agreement. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter. To enter into 

Executive Session, pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b), for the purpose of conferencing 

with the Town Attorney to receive legal advice on specific legal questions pertaining to the 

potential encroachment of a fence in Town-owed right-of-way adjacent to property located on 

First Street… 

and 

…pursuant to C.R.S. Sections 24-6-402(4)(a) and (4)(e)(I), for the purposes of considering the 

purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of any real, personal, or other property interest, and 

determining positions, developing strategy and instructing negotiators relative to matters that 

may be subject to negotiation; specifically pertaining to a proposed amendment to the existing 

tower lease with SBA Communications concerning Town-owned property located on Cemetery 

Circle Drive. 

12



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

Voting Aye: Mayor Pro-Tem Markle 

Voting Nay: Trustee Smith, Trustee Stelter, Trustee Knutson, Trustee MacInnis, Trustee 

Valentine 

 

Motion fails. 

 

Mayor & Trustee Reports 

 

Discussion is had about the CML conference and the Housing Assessment update. 

 

Trustee MacInnis makes a motion, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Markle, to extend the meeting 

until 10:30 pm 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, seconded by  Trustee MacInnis to recess for  5 minutes. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Meeting resumes at 9:21 pm 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee MacInnis, to enter into Executive 

Session, pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b), for the purpose of conferencing with the 

Town Attorney to receive legal advice on specific legal questions pertaining to the potential 

encroachment of a fence in Town-owed right-of-way adjacent to property located on First 

Street… 

 

and 

 

…pursuant to C.R.S. Sections 24-6-402(4)(a) and (4)(e)(I), for the purposes of considering the 

purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of any real, personal, or other property interest, and 

determining positions, developing strategy and instructing negotiators relative to matters that 

may be subject to negotiation; specifically pertaining to a proposed amendment to the existing 

tower lease with SBA Communications concerning Town-owned property located on Cemetery 

Circle Drive. 

 

Executive Session Begins: 9:22 pm 

 

Executive session end: 10:17 pm 

 

Participants in the Executive Session included Mayor Bachran, Mayor Pro-Tem Markle, Trustee 

Valentine, Trustee MacInnis, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Stelter, Trustee Smith, Interim Town 

Administrator Klusmire, Town Administrator Wynn and Town Attorney Cotton-Baez. 

No concerns were stated for the record. 

 

13



 

  

JULY 11, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 9 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Smith, to direct the Town 

Attorney to proceed with municipal prosecution regarding the fence encroachment on First Street 

as discussed in Executive Session 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Adjournment 
 

Meeting adjourns at 10:21 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Samira M Vetter, Town Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

14



 

  

JULY 25, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

July 25, 2023 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Mayor Bachran calls the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

 

Roll Call 
Mayor Bachran 

Mayor Pro-Tem Markle (Zoom) 

Trustee Stelter 

Trustee Smith 

Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee MacInnis 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Stelter to approve the agenda. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

Announcements 

 

Happy 5 years for Amanda Mojarro on July 28 

Chief Laiminger introduces Corporal Gilliam 

Corner of Third and Grand, the new wayfinding sign is up and complete! Thank you, Amy 

DeLuca, North Fork Valley Creative Coalition and Ira Houseweart. 

 

Public Comment 
None 

 

Consent Agenda 
Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee MacInnis, to approve the consent agenda. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

  

Staff Reports 
 

Administrator Wynn explains the new Departmental Scorecard and how it will make it easier for 

both the public and the Board to see what is happening in Town. 

 

15



 

  

JULY 25, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Actions & Presentations 
 

1. Consideration of Approval of Western Slope Conservation Centers request for a donation of 

$2000 for repair of damages to the school loop trails 

 

Administrator Wynn introduces the new staff reporting and gives a summary of the Western 

Slope Conservations Center request. 

 

Kathy Swartz gives an update of where they are in their fundraising efforts and Ben Graves 

explains that they have moved the trail over about 20 ft to help alleviate flood issues in the 

future. 

 

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Knutson, to approve a donation of 

$2000.00 to the WSCC for repair of flooding damage to the school loop trails. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

 

2. Discussion and Decisions on parking at the top of Pan American and Vista Drive 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Stelter to continue this discussion while 

the Town Administrator does some research so he can make a recommendation. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

3.Consideration of Approval of the Mountain Harvest Festival Request for longer Street Closure 

 

Administrator Wynn talks about ways to streamline the Special Event Permit process and 

explains that a 17-hour closure is needed instead of the stated 14-hours but all of the required 

elements are met. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Watson: asks about park use and applications. 

 

Trustee Smith asks about the actual hours of operation. Amy DeLuca explains that the added 

time is for a buffer for safety more than anything. 

 

Trustee Knutson asks about alcohol control, correct dates (Sept 22, 23, 24), hours of operation (7 

a - 12 a), Poulos Park is a part of the liquor control area not activity based, meeting with staff is 

already scheduled and all legal requirements are met. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, Seconded by Trustee Valentine, to approve Special Event 

Application 2023-06 the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival pending the timely payment of 

fees & deposits associated with the permit; and the successful outcome of a public hearing for a 

special event permit with alcohol after adequate notice pursuant to 44-5-106 C.R.S.  

16



 

  

JULY 25, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

4. Discussion on possible mobility route from Town Park to Downtown  

 

Trustee Knutson talks about a mobility route being a thing that has often been brought up by the 

disabled and people with strollers, needing a safe route for them to get from downtown to the 

park. 

 

Discussion includes Third St north side for sunlight in the winter, using 4th street as part of it, 

4th street having less sidewalk and a ditch to contend with, vegetation causing people to go from 

sidewalk to streer, the need for maintenance and code enforcement, defining relationships along 

that route and liabilities associated with both sides, actually a part of the Master Plan and a 

Strategic Plan element that should be dealt with. 

 

5. Approval of Opting into Proposition 123 to Increase Affordable Housing 

 

The Board needs to give the  Town Administrator authority to opt in to Proposition 123. 

Administrator Wynn is working with Urban Rural Continuum to establish needs and assess the 

requirements. The Town is also looking at the USDA requirements for grants and we will 

continue work closing with DOLA and Urban Rural Continuum to establish whether it is a good 

idea. 

 

(Mayor Pro-Tem Markle leaves at 7:15 pm due to technical issues) 

 

Public Comment: 

 

S. Watson comments about more research being needed to see if it will benefit the people of 

Paonia. 

 

Board discussion includes the need for affordable housing, the funding is available but opting in 

is needed, can the Town define affordability, parameters of affordable, bare minimums of 

housing unit needed, using funds for development or land banking, opting in is key to eligibility, 

possible partnerships after funding, USDA tables meaning, private/public partnership, staff time 

needed, building processes, contractors. 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Stelter to authorize the Town 

Administrator to opt-in to Proposition 123 to increase affordable housing. 

 

Motion passes unanimously. 

 

6. Discussion and direction for Urban Rural Continuum about optional add-ons to contract. 

 

Administrator Wynn explains why Urban Rural Continuum is asking about the optional add-ons 

and that they need to know if they need to schedule time for these. 

 

Board discussion includes funding, time constraints, where funding from in budget. 

17



 

  

JULY 25, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

 

Trustee Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Stelter to approve both optional add ins, 

not to exceed $8,760.00. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

7. Consideration of approval of engagement letter for Sherry Caloia as water counsel. 

 

Administrator Wynn explains that our water rights are complicated an Attorney Caloia already 

has knowledge of the agreements and has agreed to be retained and not raise her rates for $5000 

for the rest of the year. 

 

Trustee Mith makes a motion, seconded by Trustee MacInnis to approve engaging Sherry Caloia 

as water counsel for the rest of the year. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

 

8. Consideration of Approval of sponsoring a Cadet in the Police Academy for employment 

commitment 

 

Chief Laiminger explains how this type of agreement can help offset recruiting issues and not 

being able to compete with larger larger departments, salary-wise. 

 

Board discussion includes whether this is an administrative decision, Chief shouldn't have to 

come ask for this every time if he is operating within his budget, purchasing policy, education 

line item would help with that in the next budget, procurement policies, prorated payback clause 

included in contract. 

 

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Valentine, to approve sponsoring a cadet un 

the Police Academy in the fall in return for an employment commitment. 

 

Motion carries unanimously. 

Mayor & Trustee Reports 

 

Trustee MacInnis makes a statement that it is important to have the Town define affordable 

housing to fit our community and find help to get existing homes updated, let's keep that in our 

sights. 

Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourns at 7:45 pm. 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Samira M Vetter, Town Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

18



 

 

Disbursements 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Town of Paonia

Cindy Jones, Finance Officer 

PO Box 460

Paonia, CO  81428

RE: Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority
Drinking Water Revolving Fund (DWRF) Leveraged Loan Program

Ladies and gentlemen:

Below is a breakdown of your loan repayment(s) due

Loan Number Total

$87,071.96

Total Amount Due $87,071.96

* Net interest includes administrative fee (see Exhibit C of Loan Agreement)

 

 

 

 

Payment instructions for wire transfer and ACH transfer are as follows.

Please note: If the ACH form requires a payment type, use "DDA."

Wire and ACH Instructions

RBK: US BANK NA

ABA: 091000022

BNF: US BANK NA

         777 E WISCONSIN AVE

         MILWAUKEE, WI 53202

A/C#: 104792954745

Additional Info: REF 

If you would like to make your payments by automatic debit, or if you are unable to comply with this procedure

please reach out to me prior to the payment date at (651) 466-6136 or yia.vue@usbank.com. 

Thank you,

Yia Vue

Cc: Valerie Lovato, Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority

Samira Vetter, Town of Paonia

14878100

$66,137.74 $20,934.22

June 30, 2023

8/1/2023

Principal Net Interest

D14A212 $66,137.74 $20,934.22

*Transmitted via email

27



 

Retail Marijuana License Renewal 

Valley High LLC 

28



 

 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
   

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET: 
 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Samira Vetter, Town Clerk

Consent Agenda: Valley High LLC Retail Marijuana License 
Renewal

August 8, 2023
1. All forms have been filled out and submitted to the Department 
of Revenue and the Town of Paonia in a timely fashion.

2. All fees have been submitted to the Department of Revenue 
and the Town of Paonia.

3. The Police Department has no issues or concerns with the 
renewal of this license.

4. The Public Works Department has no issues or concerns with
the renewal of this license.

5. The Clerks Office has no issues or concerns with the renewal 
of this license

Revenue: $2300  to 10-32-01

Monthly transaction fees to 10-31-06

To Approve the Retail Marijuana License Renewal for Valley High 
LLC

1. State Renewal Application  
2. Owner Renewal 
3. Commercial Lease

29



Renewal Application Information

Renewal Application Instructions and Checklist
Answer every question. If a question doesn't apply, indicate with an N/A. All renewals should be submitted prior 
to expiration.

The disclosure requirements and the main application must be completed in full by all applicants. If this renewal 
includes a PTC, QPF, QII, or Mobile Hospitality, the appropriate addendum must also be completed.

NOTE: There is no longer a grace period for the renewal of RMB licenses. If your license expires, you will need 
to cease operations and reapply for a new RMB license and pay all required fees.

See fee table on website: www.colorado.gov/revenue/med

All Forms Signed & Attached

Each of the following forms must be completed and signed by a CBO of the RMB and included with the 
application:

•  Affirmation & Consent
•  Tax Check Authorization
•  Investigation Authorization/Authorization to Release Information
•  Applicant's Request to Release Information
•  Affirmation of Reasonable Care
•  Upon request by the Division, an Applicant must provide additional information or documents required to 
process and investigate the application, within seven (7) days of the request. Please note: This deadline may 
be extended for a period of time commensurate with the scope of the request.

Please go here for the affidavits and release packet each owner will need to fill out and sign (only use this if 
more than one owner.)

Business Information

Applicant's Legal Business Name : VALLEY HIGH LLC

License Number : 402R-00934

License Type : Retail Marijuana Store

License Expiration Date : 08/27/2023

Choose the type of grow if renewing a cultivation.

Indoor, Outdoor or Mixed : N/A

If renewing a hospitality business, choose additional type below, (if applicable).

Mobile, etc. : 

List all Registered Trade names here. If you do not have a trade name, please put N/A.

Trade Name(s) (DBA) : Valley High LLC

Federal Taxpayer ID (FEIN) : 853907518

30

www.colorado.gov/revenue/med
https://sbg.colorado.gov/sites/sbg/files/documents/Affirmation%20and%20Release%20Packet%20for%20ML1_0.pdf


Colorado Sales Tax License # : 94941709-0000

Name of Registered Agent : Micah Erickson

Ownership Type : LLC

Physical Address

Street Address of Marijuana Business : 512 2nd Street

City : Paonia

County : Delta

State : Colorado - CO

ZIP : 81428

Country : United States

Phone Number : 9705271077

Business Email : valleyhighllc@gmail.com

Mailing Address

Mailing Address (include suite or apt. #) : PO Box 965

City : Paonia

County : Delta

State : Colorado - CO

Zip : 81428

Country : United States

Primary Contact Person

Primary Contact Person for Business (Full name) : Micah Erickson

Phone Number : 

Email : valleyhighllc@gmail.com

31



Questions

Is the licensee (including any of the partners, if a partnership; members or manager if a limited liability company; 
or officers, stockholders or directors if a corporation) under the age of twenty-one years?

Yes/No : No

Has the applicant or any business entity owned by the applicant, ever owned or applied for a Marijuana license 
in this or any other jurisdiction, foreign or domestic?  

Yes/No : No

Do you have legal possession of the licensed premises?

Yes/No : Yes

In the past year, has the licensee (including all parent or subsidiary companies, if any) had a tax lien filed against 
it, or become delinquent in the payment or fling of any judgments, taxes, interest or penalties owed to the State 
of Colorado.

Yes/No : No

In the past year, has the licensee (including all parent or subsidiary companies, if any), been indicted, served with 
a criminal summons, charged with or convicted of ANY crime or offense in any manner? Include ALL offenses 
regardless of class of crime or outcome, even if the charges were dismissed or you were found not guilty.

Yes/No : No

Within the last 12 months, has there been a change in ownership or ownership allocation, a transfer of 
stock, a change in the incorporation or in the corporate by-laws, or any other change affecting ownership or 
organizational structure of the licensee or its subsidiaries/affiliates?

Yes/No : Yes

If yes, please provide details

Details : My husband passed away in September. I just sent an exempt from ownership form over to get him 
removed. I will be 100% owner of this company

Please attach any applicable documents concerning the changes. (i.e. New operating agreement)

Applicabledocuments:

Operating agreement 1.pdf

Operating agreement.pdf

Operating agreement 21.pdf

Operating agreement 20.pdf

Operating agreement 19.pdf

Operating agreement 18.pdf

Operating agreement 17.pdf

32



Operating agreement 16.pdf

Operating agreement 15.pdf

Operating agreement 14.pdf

Operating agreement 13.pdf

Operating agreement 12.pdf

Operating agreement 11.pdf

Operating agreement 10.pdf

Operating agreement 9.pdf

Operating agreement 8.pdf

Operating agreement 7.pdf

Operating agreement 6.pdf

Operating agreement 5.pdf

Operating agreement 4.pdf

Operating agreement 3.pdf

Operating agreement 2.pdf

Ownership Structure

List Controlling Beneficial Owners with 10% or greater ownership and/or Executive Officers, managers and any 
other individual that Controls the RMB.

Corporate Owners: 

Is the Owner a Natural Person? : Yes

If the owner is a Person, enter the name below.

First Name : Micah

Middle Name : Nichole

Last Name : Erickson

Business Associated With : Valley High LLC

Ownership Percentage in Controlling Entity/Parent Company : 100%

33



Ownership Percentage in Applicant : 100%

Upload affirmation and release packet(s) here for at least one Controlling Beneficial Owner.

affirmationpacket:

Hotchkiss Application.pdf

Are there any outstanding options, warrants or contracts, that may be exercised into an Owner's Interest in the 
RMB within the next 60 days that would constitute a CBO?

Yes/No : No

Are there any other Persons, other than those listed in the Ownership Structure, that can control the RMB?

Yes/No : No

Are any owners renewing their Owners Licenses with this application?

Yes/No : Yes

Reminder!
Each owner must submit an Owner Renewal Application.

Has the applicant exercised reasonable care to confirm that its CBO's, PBO's (that are Non-Objecting PBO's), 
Qualified Institutional investors and Indirect Financial Interest Holders are NOT Person(s) prohibited under 
Section C.R.S. 44-10-307? (Publicly Traded Companies excluded)

Yes/No : Yes

Have any CBO's been removed or moved to PBO ownership status since the prior application?

Yes/No : Yes

If Yes, list and explain.

List and explain here. : My husband Jesse Erickson passed away and is removed. 

List all Indirect Financial Interest Holders (if applicable).

Interest Holder: 

Local Licensing Authority

Local Licensing Authority : Town of Paonia

Local Licensing Authority Contact Name (if known) : 

Contact Phone Number (if known) : (970) 527-4101

Contact Email (if known) : 

Current License Status with Local Authority

34



Status : approved

Local License Expiration

Date of Expiration : 08/27/2023

Renewal Required Disclosures

Provide a copy of the Local Licensing Authority or Local Jurisdiction approval, licensure, and/or documentation 
demonstrating timely submission of pending local license renewal application.

CopyofLocallicense:

state, local, licensing 1.pdf

Provide a list of any sanctions, penalties, assessments or cease and desist orders.

List here : 

First renewal of the year for each entity must include the following:

Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in the preceding 365 days (either calendar or fiscal year basis).

FinancialStatements:

2022 Banking 6.pdf

2022 Banking 5.pdf

2022 Banking 4.pdf

2022 Banking 3.pdf

2022 Banking 2.pdf

2022 Banking 1.pdf

2022 Banking.pdf

2022 Banking 30.pdf

2022 Banking 29.pdf

2022 Banking 28.pdf

2022 Banking 27.pdf

2022 Banking 26.pdf

2022 Banking 25.pdf

2022 Banking 24.pdf

35



2022 Banking 23.pdf

2022 Banking 22.pdf

2022 Banking 21.pdf

2022 Banking 20.pdf

2022 Banking 19.pdf

2022 Banking 18.pdf

2022 Banking 17.pdf

2022 Banking 16.pdf

2022 Banking 15.pdf

2022 Banking 14.pdf

2022 Banking 13.pdf

2022 Banking 12.pdf

2022 Banking 11.pdf

2022 Banking 10.pdf

2022 Banking 9.pdf

2022 Banking 8.pdf

2022 Banking 7.pdf

2022 Banking 37.pdf

2022 Banking 36.pdf

2022 Banking 35.pdf

2022 Banking 34.pdf

2022 Banking 33.pdf

2022 Banking 32.pdf

2022 Banking 31.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 7.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 6.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 5.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 4.pdf

36



2022 P & L Statement 3.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 2.pdf

2022 P & L Statement 1.pdf

2022 P & L Statement.pdf

Have your financial statements been audited? (Audited required for PTC)

Yes/No : Yes

If available online, cite location.

Online Location : 

Provide a copy of any contracts, agreements, royalty agreements, equipment leases, financing agreement, 
security contract or any other IFIH required to be disclosed by Rule 2-230(A)(3).

Agreements:

Provide a copy of any management agreement(s).

Copyofmanagementagreements:

assistant manager job desription 1.pdf

assistant manager job desription.pdf

Tax Documents establishing compliant return filing and payment of taxes related to any RMB, in which the 
Person is, or was, required to file and pay taxes.  (Do not include entire tax return).

Taxdocumentation:

taxes 2022- Extension 1.pdf

taxes 2022- Extension.pdf

Provide each of the following (only if changed since the last submission):

Organizational Documents- Choose which is being provided.

Choose one : Operating Agreement for LLC

Upload document

Orgdocs:

Operating agreement 1.pdf

Operating agreement.pdf

Operating agreement 21.pdf

37



Operating agreement 20.pdf

Operating agreement 19.pdf

Operating agreement 18.pdf

Operating agreement 17.pdf

Operating agreement 16.pdf

Operating agreement 15.pdf

Operating agreement 14.pdf

Operating agreement 13.pdf

Operating agreement 12.pdf

Operating agreement 11.pdf

Operating agreement 10.pdf

Operating agreement 9.pdf

Operating agreement 8.pdf

Operating agreement 7.pdf

Operating agreement 6.pdf

Operating agreement 5.pdf

Operating agreement 4.pdf

Operating agreement 3.pdf

Operating agreement 2.pdf

Corporate Governance Document- Choose one

Choose one : No Change

Certificate of Good Standing from jurisdiction where Entity was formed. (If no change, click selection below).

CertificateGoodStanding:

Certificates good standing 5.pdf

Certificates good standing 4.pdf

Certificates good standing 3.pdf

Certificates good standing 2.pdf

38



Certificates good standing 1.pdf

Certificates good standing.pdf

If no change, check box.

No Change :  

Provide Proof of Possession of Licensed Premises, including any amendments and/or extensions.  Choose 
which is being provided.

Deed, lease, etc. : Lease

Upload proof of possession document here.

proofpossdoc:

Paonia Commercial lease 16.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 15.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 14.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 13.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 12.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 11.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 10.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 9.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 8.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 7.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 6.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 5.pdf

Paonia Commercial lease 4.pdf

Facility Diagrams- Provide a Legible and Accurate diagram for the facility. The diagram must include a plan for 
the Licensed Premises AND a separate plan for the Security/Surveillance, including camera location, number 
and direction of coverage. 

Facility Diagrams:

If no change to facility and security, check box below.

No Change :  

Organizational Chart, including the identity and ownership percentage of all CBO’s. (If no change check box 
below).

39



OrganizationalChart:

Certificates good standing 4.pdf

Certificates good standing 3.pdf

Certificates good standing 2.pdf

Certificates good standing 1.pdf

If no change to organizational chart, check box below.

No change to Org chart :  

Affirmation & Consent

I state under Penalty for offering a false instrument for recording, pursuant to 18-5-114 C.R.S., that the entire 
Renewal Employee License Application, statements, attachments, and supporting schedules are true and 
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, and that this statement is executed with the knowledge that 
misrepresentation or failure to reveal information requested, may be deemed sufficient cause for the refusal to 
issue a Marijuana license by the State Licensing Authority. Further, I am aware that later discovery of an omission 
or misrepresentation made in the above statements, may be grounds for denial of a Marijuana application or 
the revocation of the license. I am voluntarily submitting this application to the Colorado Marijuana Licensing 
Authority, under oath, with full knowledge that I may be charged with perjury or other crimes for intentional 
omissions and misrepresentations pursuant to Colorado law or for offering a false instrument for recording 
pursuant to 18-5-114 C.R.S. I further consent to any background investigation necessary to determine my 
present and continuing suitability and that this consent continues as long as I hold a Colorado Marijuana 
license.
Note: If your check is rejected due to insufficient or uncollected funds, the Department of Revenue may collect 
the payment amount directly from your banking account electronically.

I Accept :  

Electronic Signature Agreement. By selecting the "I Accept" button, I acknowledge that I am signing this 
document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the same legal effect and enforceability 
as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I declare under penalty of perjury in the 
second degree that the statements made on this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

I Accept :  

Applicant's Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

Tax Check Authorization and Request To Release Information

I am signing this waiver on behalf of the “Applicant/Licensee” to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue 
and any other state or local taxing authority to release information and documents that would otherwise be 
confidential. If I am signing this waiver for someone other than myself, I certify that I have the authority to 
execute this waiver on behalf of the Applicant/Licensee. The information and documentation obtained pursuant 
to this waiver will be used in connection with the Applicant/Licensee’s application or licensure with the Colorado 

40



Marijuana Enforcement Division, which requires proof of compliance with certain tax obligations pursuant to 
several statutory provisions, including sections 44-10-202(1) and 44-10-307(1)(e), C.R.S. This waiver is made 
pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S.; and any other similar law or ordinance concerning the confidentiality 
of tax returns and return information.

This waiver shall be valid while the application is pending and, if the application is approved, (1) for one year 
from the date of licensure or; (2) if applying for an employee license under the medical marijuana code, for 
two years from the date of licensure. If the license is administratively continued pursuant to section 44-10-314, 
C.R.S., this waiver shall be valid until the state licensing authority takes final action to approve or deny the 
renewal of the license. Applicant/Licensee agrees to execute a new waiver for each subsequent licensing 
period in connection with the renewal of any license. Applicant/Licensee requests that the Colorado Department 
of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority release the following information and supporting 
documentation to the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division, which is acting as Applicant’s/Licensee’s duly 
authorized representative under section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., solely to obtain the information specified below.

1.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has failed to file any state tax return with the Colorado Department of 
Revenue or any other state or local taxing authority by the required due date (determined with regard to any 
extension(s) of time for filing) for any tax year for which filing of a return might have been required.
2.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has failed to pay any tax, penalty, or interest liability within 30 days of the 
date on which the Colorado Department of Revenue or any other state or local taxing authority gave notice of 
the amount due and requested payment.
3.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has entered into a payment plan with the Colorado Department of Revenue 
or any other state or local taxing authority and whether Applicant/Licensee is current on any payments required 
by said payment plan.

Applicant/Licensee authorizes the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing au-
thority to release any additional information or documentation necessary to answer the questions above. 
Applicant/Licensee authorizes the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division and its legal representatives to 
use the information and documentation obtained from the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state 
or local taxing authority in any administrative action regarding the application or license. To assist the Colorado 
Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority locate the tax records, Applicant/Licensee 
is voluntarily providing the following information:

Name, address, phone number, and SSN (previously requested on this application).

I Accept :  

Electronic Signature Agreement. By selecting the "I Accept" button, I acknowledge that I am signing this 
document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the same legal effect and enforceability 
as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I declare under penalty of perjury in the 
second degree that the statements made on this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

I Accept :  

Legal Last Name : Erickson

Legal First Name : Micah

Legal Middle Name : Nichole

Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

Investigation Authorization/Authorization to Release Information

41



I hereby authorize the Colorado Marijuana Licensing Authority, the Marijuana Enforcement Division, (hereafter, 
the Investigatory Agencies) to conduct a complete investigation into my personal background, using whatever 
legal means they deem appropriate. I hereby authorize any person or entity contacted by the Investigatory 
Agencies to provide any and all such information deemed necessary by the Investigatory Agencies. I hereby 
waive any rights of confidentiality in this regard. I understand that by signing this authorization, a financial 
record check may be performed. I authorize any financial institution to surrender to the Investigatory Agencies 
a complete and accurate record of such transactions that may have occurred with that institution, including, but 
not limited to, internal banking memoranda, past and present loan applications, financial statements and any 
other documents relating to my personal or business financial records in whatever form and wherever located. 
I understand that by signing this authorization, a financial record check of my tax filing and tax obligation 
status may be performed. I authorize the Colorado Department of Revenue to surrender to the Investigatory 
Agencies a complete and accurate record of any and all tax information or records relating to me. I authorize the 
Investigatory Agencies to obtain, receive, review, copy, discuss and use any such tax information or documents 
relating to me. I authorize the release of this type of information, even though such information may be 
designated as “confidential” or “nonpublic” under the provisions of state or federal laws. I understand that by 
signing this authorization, a criminal history check will be performed. I authorize the Investigatory Agencies 
to obtain and use from any source, any information concerning me contained in any type of criminal history 
record files, wherever located. I understand that the criminal history record files contain records of arrests 
which may have resulted in a disposition other than a finding of guilt (i.e., dismissed charges, or charges that 
resulted in a not guilty finding). I understand that the information may contain listings of charges that resulted in 
suspended imposition of sentence, even though I successfully completed the conditions of said sentence and 
was discharged pursuant to law. I authorize the release of this type of information, even though this record may 
be designated as “confidential” or “nonpublic” under the provisions of state or federal laws. The Investigatory 
Agencies reserve the right to investigate all relevant information and facts to their satisfaction. I understand 
that the Investigatory Agencies may conduct a complete and comprehensive investigation to determine the 
accuracy of all information gathered. However, the State of Colorado, Investigatory Agencies, and other agents 
or employees of the State of Colorado shall not be held liable for the receipt, use, or dissemination of inaccurate 
information. I, on behalf of the applicant, its legal representatives, and assigns, hereby release, waive, discharge, 
and agree to hold harmless, and otherwise waive liability as to the State of Colorado, Investigatory Agencies, 
and other agents or employees of the State of Colorado for any damages resulting from any use, disclosure, 
or publication in any manner, other than a willfully unlawful disclosure or publication, of any material or infor-
mation acquired during inquiries, investigations, or hearings, and hereby authorize the lawful use, disclosure, or 
publication of this material or information. Any information contained within my application, contained within 
any financial or personnel record, or otherwise found, obtained, or maintained by the Investigatory Agencies, 
shall be accessible to law enforcement agents of this or any other state, the government of the United States, 
or any foreign country.

I Accept :  

Electronic Signature Agreement. By selecting the "I Accept" button, I acknowledge that I am signing this 
document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the same legal effect and enforceability 
as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I declare under penalty of perjury in the 
second degree that the statements made on this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

I Accept :  

Applicant's Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

Applicant's Request to Release Information

1.  I hereby authorize and request all persons to whom this request is presented having information relating 
to or concerning the above named applicant to furnish such information to a duly appointed agent of the 
Marijuana Enforcement Division whether or not such information would otherwise be protected from the 
disclosure by any constitutional, statutory or common law privilege.
2.  I hereby authorize and request all persons to whom this request is presented having documents relating to or 
concerning the above named applicant to permit a duly appointed agent of the Marijuana Enforcement Division 

42



to review and copy any such documents, whether or not such documents would otherwise be protected from 
disclosure by any constitutional, statutory, or common law privilege.
3.  I hereby authorize and request the Colorado Department of Revenue to permit a duly appointed agent of 
the Marijuana Enforcement Division to obtain, receive, review, copy, discuss and use any such tax information 
or documents relating to or concerning the above named applicant, whether or not such information or 
documents would otherwise be protected from disclosure by any constitutional, statutory, or common law 
privilege.
4.  If the person to whom this request is presented is a brokerage firm, bank, savings and loan, or other financial 
institution or an officer of the same, I/we hereby authorize and request that a duly appointed agent of the 
Marijuana Enforcement Division be permitted to review and obtain copies of any and all documents, records 
or correspondence pertaining to me/us, including but not limited to past loan information, notes co-signed by 
me/us, checking account records, savings deposit records, safe deposit box records, passbook records, and 
general ledger folio sheets.
5.  I do hereby make, constitute, and appoint any duly appointed agent of the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement 
Division, my true and lawful attorney in fact for me in my name, place, stead, and on my behalf and for my use 
and benefit:
6.  (a) To request, review, copy sign for, or otherwise act for investigative purposes with respect to documents 
and information in the possession of the person to whom this request is presented as I might;
7.  (b) To name the person or entity to whom this request is presented and insert that person’s name in the 
appropriate location in this request:
8.  (c) To place the name of the agent presenting this request in the appropriate location on this request.
9.  I grant to said attorney in fact full power and authority to do, take, and perform all and every act and thing 
whatsoever requisite, proper, or necessary to be done, in the exercise of any of the rights and powers herein 
granted, as fully to all intents and purposes as I might or could do if personally present, with full power of 
substitution or revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney in fact, or his substitute or 
substitutes, shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of this power of attorney and the rights and powers 
herein granted.
10.  This power of attorney ends twenty-four (24) months from the date of execution.
11.  The above named applicant has filed with the Colorado Marijuana Licensing Authority an application 
for a Marijuana license. Said applicant understands that he/she is seeking the granting of a privilege and 
acknowledges that the burden of proving its qualifications for a favorable determination is at all times on the 
applicant. Said applicant accepts any risk of adverse public notice, embarrassment, criticism, or other action 
of financial loss, which may result from action with respect to this application.
12.  I do, for myself, my heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, hereby release, remise, and 
forever discharge the person to whom this request is presented, and his agents and employees from all and 
all manner or actions, causes of action, suits, debts, judgments, executions, claims, and demands whatsoever, 
known or unknown, in law or equity, which the applicant ever had, now has, may have, or claims to have against 
the person to whom this request is being presented or his agents or employees arising out of or by reason of 
complying with the request.
13.  I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the person to whom this request is presented and his agents and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees 
arising out of or by reason of complying with this request.
14.  A reproduction of this request by photocopying or similar process shall be for all intents and purposes as 
valid as the original.

Electronic Signature Agreement. By selecting the "I Accept" button, I acknowledge that I am signing this 
document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the same legal effect and enforceability 
as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I declare under penalty of perjury in the 
second degree that the statements made on this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

I Accept :  

Applicant's Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

43



Reasonable Care  (Choose one)

AFFIRMATION OF REASONABLE CARE – PRIVATE COMPANY

Pursuant to subsections 44-10-309(4) C.R.S. and Rule 2-230(D), Applicant or Licensee affirms that, prior to sub-
mission of this application, it exercised reasonable care to confirm its Passive Beneficial Owners, (including any 
Qualified Institutional Investors) and Indirect Financial Interest Holders, are not Persons prohibited from being 
issued or holding a license by section 44-10-307 C.R.S., or otherwise restricted from holding an interest under 
the Colorado Regulated Marijuana Business Code. An Applicant’s or Licensee’s failure to exercise reasonable 
care is a basis for denial, fine, suspension, revocation or other sanction by the State Licensing Authority.

I,

Field 11-2 : Micah Nichole Erickson

, as Controlling Beneficial Owner or Manager for

Field 11-5 : Valley High LLC

, state under penalty of perjury, pursuant to §18-8-503, that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief.

Signature of Authorized Representative : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

AFFIRMATION OF REASONABLE CARE – PUBLICLY TRADED CORPORATION

Pursuant to subsections 44-10-309(5) C.R.S. and Rule 2-230(D), Applicant or Licensee affirms that, prior to 
submission of this application, it exercised reasonable care to confirm its Non-objecting Passive Beneficial 
Owner, (including any Qualified Institutional Investors) and Indirect Financial Interest Holders, are not Persons 
prohibited from being issued or holding a license by section 44-10-307 C.R.S., or otherwise restricted from 
holding an interest under the Colorado Regulated Marijuana Business Code. An Applicant’s or Licensee’s failure 
to exercise reasonable care is a basis for denial, fine, suspension, revocation or other sanction by the State 
Licensing Authority.

I,

Field 11-13 : Micah Nichole Erickson

, as Controlling Beneficial Owner or Manager for

Field 11-15 : Valley High LLC

, state under penalty of perjury, pursuant to §18-8-503, that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief.

Signature of Authorized Representative : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

44



Addendum A - Publicly Traded Company

Stock Trading Symbol : N/A

NAICS/SIC Code : 

Name of Exchange(s) traded on : 

Identify all regulatory agencies with oversight over the company's securities

Regulatory Agency: 

Reporting agencies required reports submitted on: : 

Provide a list of sanctions, penalties, assessments, or cease and desist orders by any securities regulatory 
agency, including but not limited to the US Securities and Exchange Commission or the Canadian Securities 
Administrators.

uploadlistsanc:

Attach the most recent list of Non-Objecting Beneficial owners possessed by the PTC. (First renewal of the year 
only).

NonObjectingBeneown:

If there have been any changes in the business objectives of the Publicly Traded Company, provide documen-
tation that establishes it still qualifies to hold a RMB license as referenced in 44-10-103 (50).

Description : 

Attach documents requiring divestiture of any CBO that is prohibited by Section 44-10-307 that has had his or 
her Owner’s License revoked or has been found unsuitable.

DivestiturePlan:

If the Licensee or RMB is required to have audited financial statements by another regulator (e.g. United States 
Securities and Exchange Commission or the Canadian Securities Administrators) the financial statements 
provided to the Division must be audited and must also include all footnotes, schedules, auditors’ report(s), and 
auditor’s opinion(s). If the financial statements are publicly available on a website (e.g. EDGAR or SEDAR), the 
Licensee or RMB may provide notification of the website link where the financial statements can be accessed 
in lieu of hardcopy submission.
(See Rule 2-225(G)(4)(a))

auditedfindocs:

Questions

Confirm that the PTC is current with all required filings pursuant to any applicable requirements by any securities 
regulatory authority including, but not limited to, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Canadian Securities Administrators.

Current/Not Current : 

Confirm that ALL required findings of suitability have been obtained PRIOR TO the PTC becoming a CBO.

Yes/No : 

45



Confirm that all mandatory filings for CBO’s as required by any securities regulatory authority, including, but not 
limited to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or the Canadian Securities Administrators, 
have been filed and the MED has been provided concurrent notice with the filing.

Yes/No : 

Addendum B- Qualified Private Fund

Identify all regulatory agencies with oversight over the QPF's securities.

Regulatory Agency Name(s): 

Reporting agencies required reports submitted on: : N/A

Provide a list of sanctions, penalties, assessments, or cease and desist orders by any securities regulatory 
agency, including but not limited to the US Securities and Exchange Commission or the Canadian Securities 
Administrators.

Field11-9sanc:

Questions

Confirm that the QPF is current with all required filings pursuant to any applicable requirements by any securities 
regulatory.

Current/Not Current : 

Confirm that ALL required findings of suitability, including all QPF managers, investment advisers, investment 
adviser representatives, any trustee or equivalent, and any other person that controls the investment in, or 
management or operations of, the RMB, have been obtained SINCE the QPF became effective.

Yes/No : 

Addendum C- Qualified Institutional Investor

Provide identities of all Regulators with oversight over the QII’s securities

QII Regulators: 

Reporting agencies required reports submitted on: : N/A

List of Sanctions, penalties, assessments, or cease and desist orders by any securities regulatory agency, 
including but not limited to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or the Canadian Securities 
Administrators.

listsanc:

Attach the most recent list of PBO's possessed by the QII.

pbosbytheqii:

Questions

46



Confirm that the QII is current with all required filings pursuant to any applicable requirements by�
any securities regulatory.

Current/Not Current : 

Confirm that ALL required findings of suitability including all QII managers, investment advisers,�
investment adviser representatives, any trustee or equivalent, and any other person that controls
the investment in, or management or operations of, the RMB have been obtained PRIOR TO the
QII becoming effective

Yes/No : 

Addendum D- Mobile Hospitality

Vehicle Make : N/A

Vehicle Model : 

Vehicle Year : 

License Plate Number : 

VIN : 

PUC Permit Number : 

Is the mobile premises compliant with all state and local registration and permitting requirements?

Yes/No : 

Provide the following:

a. Documentation that the mobile licensed premises is owned or leased by the Marijuana Hospitality Business.

b. The automatic Vehicle Identification Tag (if applicable).

c. A copy of a valid permit issued by the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) to the licensed hospitality business.

Upload above required documents here (.HEIC file extensions NOT supported).

documentation:

By signing below, you affirm that the mobile licensed premises has or will have the following prior to operation:

a. A global position system for tracking of the mobile licensed premises.

b. Written standard operating procedures that address the logging of the route(s).

c. Video surveillance inside of the licensed premises, including entry and exit points to the mobile licensed 
premises and the driver's area of the vehicle.

d. Proper ventilation within the vehicle, which includes, if marijuana is smoked or vaped in the licensed premises, 
that air is not circulated into the driver's area of the licensed premises.

e. Policies and procedures to ensure that no Regulated Marijuana is possessed or consumed in the area 
designated to seat the driver and front seat passenger in the licensed premises.

f. Methods to ensure consumption activity is not visible outside the vehicle.

g. Policies, procedures or other measures to ensure that consumers are prohibited from entering the driver's 
area of the mobile licensed premises.

47



h. The Marijuana Hospitality Business license is displayed on the dashboard of the mobile licensed premises.

Signature : 

Date : 

Affirmation of Complete Application

I affirm that I have submitted a complete application and by selecting the "I Affirm and Accept" button, I 
acknowledge that I am signing this document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the 
same legal effect and enforceability as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I 
declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that the statements made on this document are true and 
complete to the best of my knowledge.

I Affirm and Accept :  

Signature

Field 14-2sign : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/12/2023

Customer Survey

We would like to know your experience with this online application process and if you have suggestions on how 
we can improve it. Please take a few minutes to complete this voluntary questionnaire to help us better serve 
you. (You may skip this survey and still submit your application by clicking the finish button). Thank you.

Please review the options below and tell us why you chose to apply online (please select all that apply):

Convenience :  

Faster Service :  

Time Savings :  

I thought it was the only option :  

Other :  

Please tell us where you learned about the online application process.

Please tell us where you learned about the online application process. : Online/website

On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being not convenient and 5 being very convenient, how convenient was the online 
application for you to complete?

 How convenient was the online application for you to complete? : 5- Very Convenient

48



On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being hard and 5 being very easy, did you find the online application process easy to 
understand? 

Did you find the online application process easy to understand? : 5- Very easy to understand

On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being unsatisfied and 5 being very satisfied, rate your overall online application 
experience. 

Please rate your overall online application experience. : 5- Very Satisfied

Do you have any comments to help us improve the online application process?

Comments : 

Would you like a team member to contact you about your comments?

Want to be contacted : 

49



Owner Renewal Instructions

1. Application Type

Owner: Any Controlling Beneficial Owner (CBO) who holds an Owner’s interest of 10% or more in a Regulated 
Marijuana Business (RMB) license, or any Executive Officer, Director or Manager who was previously found 
suitable for licensing, must renew.

2. Application Fully Complete

All renewals must be submitted prior to expiration. Answer every question as precisely as possible. If a question 
does not apply, indicate with N/A.

Notice: You are required by state law to provide your social security number. If you do not have a social security 
number, you must complete a sworn statement stating you do not have a social security number.

Applicable documents must be signed prior to submission to the MED and you must INCLUDE A COPY OF YOUR 
DRIVER’S LICENSE (must be Real ID compliant). Owners are required to be fingerprinted every 2 years and to 
submit those prints as part of the renewal application. If you are unsure if you need to be printed, please contact 
the Lakewood office (ask for Intake).

3. Application Contents

•  Main Application
•  Authorization Forms

4. All Forms Signed and Attached

The following accompanying forms must be completed, signed and returned with the application.

•  Tax Check Authorization and Request to Release Information
•  Investigation Authorization/Authorization to Release Information
•  Applicant’s Request to Release Information

5. All Requested Information Attached

•  A copy of your State or Government Issued ID must be provided.
•  Upon request by the Division, an Applicant must provide additional information or documents required to 
process and investigate the application, within seven (7) days of the request.

Please note: This deadline may be extended for a period of time commensurate with the scope of the request.

6. Application and License Fees

See fee schedule on website: www.colorado.gov/revenue/med

Application fees remitted to the State Licensing Authority and/or the Department of Revenue, are non-refund-
able.

Renewal Application 

Please Enter All Information Below

License Type : Owner- Individual

License Number : M124608

License Status : Approved

50

https://sbg.colorado.gov/marijuanaenforcement


License Issue Date : 08/27/2021

License Expiration Date : 08/27/2023

Person Information

Legal Last Name : Erickson

Legal First Name : Micah

Legal Middle Name : Nichole

SSN : 512981500

Gender : Female

Race/Ethnicity : Caucasian

Date of Birth : 03/07/1979

Cell Phone Number : 

Home Phone Number : 

Email Address : valleyhighllc@gmail.com

Government Issued ID number : 99-039-0186

State/Jurisdiction : Colorado

Upload copy of DL (real ID compliant) or other Gov't issued ID here.

DL:

drivers license only.pdf

Do you live outside of the US?

Yes/No : No

Physical Address

Street Address (if outside of the US, put entire address here) : 10102 Hidden Springs Road

City : Hotchkiss

County : Delta

State : Colorado - CO

ZIP : 81419

Country : United States

51



Mailing Address

Mailing Address (if outside of the US, put entire address here) : 10102 Hidden Springs Road

City : Hotchkiss

County : Delta

State : Colorado - CO

ZIP : 81419

Country : United States

1. Since you last renewed, have you been convicted of ANY crime that resulted in a Felony conviction,
including but not limited to, probation, parole or deferred judgment?

Yes/No : No

2. Are you currently delinquent in any past due taxes, penalties or interest due to the Colorado Department of 
Revenue, relating to a Regulated Marijuana Business?

Yes/No : No

3. Have you or any business entity owned by the applicant ever owned a marijuana license in
this or any other jurisdiction, foreign or domestic, that was subject to any of the following actions
since the last renewal:
(1) denial; (2) surrender; (3) order to show cause; (4) suspension; (5) fine; (6) revocation;�
(7) stipulation or settlement;

Yes/No : No

4. Are you delinquent in the payment of any child support? If so, must provide agreement to pay.

Yes/No : No

Tax Check Authorization and Request to Release Information

I,

Full Name : Micah Nichole Erickson

am signing this waiver on behalf of

Licensee : Micah Nichole Erickson 

(the “Applicant/Licensee”) to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing 
authority to release information and documents that would otherwise be confidential. If I am signing this 
waiver for someone other than myself, I certify that I have the authority to execute this waiver on behalf of the 
Applicant/Licensee.

The information and documentation obtained pursuant to this waiver will be used in connection with the 
Applicant/Licensee’s application or licensure with the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division, which requires 
proof of compliance with certain tax obligations pursuant to several statutory provisions, including sections 
44-10-202(1) and 44-10-307(1)(e). This waiver is made pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S.; and any other 
similar law or ordinance concerning the confidentiality of tax returns and return information. This waiver shall 
be valid while the application is pending and, if the application is approved, (1) for one year from the date of 

52



licensure or; (2) if applying for an employee license under the medical marijuana code, for two years from the 
date of licensure. If the license is administratively continued pursuant to section 44-10-314, C.R.S., this waiver 
shall be valid until the state licensing authority takes final action to approve or deny the renewal of the license. 
Applicant/Licensee agrees to execute a new waiver for each subsequent licensing period in connection with 
the renewal of any license.

Applicant/Licensee requests that the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing au-
thority release the following information and supporting documentation to the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement 
Division, which is acting as Applicant’s/Licensee’s duly authorized representative under section 39-21-113(4), 
C.R.S., solely to obtain the information specified below.

1.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has failed to file any state tax return with the Colorado Department of 
Revenue or any other state or local taxing authority by the required due date (determined with regard to any 
extension(s) of time for filing) for any tax year for which filing of a return might have been required.
2.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has failed to pay any tax, penalty, or interest liability within 30 days of the 
date on which the Colorado Department of Revenue or any other state or local taxing authority gave notice of 
the amount due and requested payment.
3.  Whether the Applicant/Licensee has entered into a payment plan with the Colorado Department of Revenue 
or any other state or local taxing authority and whether Applicant/Licensee is current on any payments required 
by said payment plan

Applicant/Licensee authorizes the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing au-
thority to release any additional information or documentation necessary to answer the questions above. 
Applicant/Licensee authorizes the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division and its legal representatives to 
use the information and documentation obtained from the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state 
or local taxing authority in any administrative action regarding the application or license. To assist the Colorado 
Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority locate the tax records, Applicant/Licensee 
is voluntarily providing the following information:

Name, address, phone number, and SSN (previously requested on this application).

Legal Last Name : Erickson

Legal First Name : Micah

Legal Middle Name : Nichole

Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/10/2023

Investigation Authorization

Investigation Authorization/Authorization to Release Information

I,

Full Name : Micah Nichole Erickson

hereby authorize the Colorado Marijuana Licensing Authority, the Marijuana Enforcement Division, (hereafter, 
the Investigatory Agencies) to conduct a complete investigation into my personal background, using whatever 
legal means they deem appropriate. I hereby authorize any person or entity contacted by the Investigatory 
Agencies to provide any and all such information deemed necessary by the Investigatory Agencies. I hereby 
waive any rights of confidentiality in this regard. I understand that by signing this authorization, a financial 
record check may be performed. I authorize any financial institution to surrender to the Investigatory Agencies 

53



a complete and accurate record of such transactions that may have occurred with that institution, including, 
but not limited to, internal banking memoranda, past and present loan applications, financial statements and 
any other documents relating to my personal or business financial records in whatever form and wherever 
located. I authorize the release of this type of information, even though such information may be designated 
as “confidential” or “nonpublic” under the provisions of state or federal laws. I understand that by signing this 
authorization, a criminal history check will be performed. I authorize the Investigatory Agencies to obtain and 
use from any source, any information concerning me contained in any type of criminal history record files, 
wherever located. I understand that the criminal history record files contain records of arrests which may 
have resulted in a disposition other than a finding of guilt (i.e., dismissed charges, or charges that resulted 
in a not guilty finding). I understand that the information may contain listings of charges that resulted in 
suspended imposition of sentence, even though I successfully completed the conditions of said sentence and 
was discharged pursuant to law. I authorize the release of this type of information, even though this record may 
be designated as “confidential” or “nonpublic” under the provisions of state or federal laws.

The Investigatory Agencies reserve the right to investigate all relevant information and facts to their satisfaction. 
I understand that the Investigatory Agencies may conduct a complete and comprehensive investigation to 
determine the accuracy of all information gathered. However, the State of Colorado, Investigatory Agencies, 
and other agents or employees of the State of Colorado shall not be held liable for the receipt, use, or 
dissemination of inaccurate information. I, on behalf of the applicant, its legal representatives, and assigns, 
hereby release, waive, discharge, and agree to hold harmless, and otherwise waive liability as to the State of 
Colorado, Investigatory Agencies, and other agents or employees of the State of Colorado for any damages 
resulting from any use, disclosure, or publication in any manner, other than a willfully unlawful disclosure or 
publication, of any material or information acquired during inquiries, investigations, or hearings, and hereby 
authorize the lawful use, disclosure, or publication of this material or information. Any information contained 
within my application, contained within any financial or personnel record, or otherwise found, obtained, or 
maintained by the Investigatory Agencies, shall be accessible to law enforcement agents of this or any other 
state, the government of the United States, or any foreign country.

Legal Last Name : Erickson

Legal First Name : Micah

Legal Middle Name : Nichole

Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/10/2023

Applicant's Request to Release Information

Applicant's Request to Release Information

1.  I hereby authorize and request all persons to whom this request is presented having information relating 
to or concerning the above named applicant to furnish such information to a duly appointed agent of the 
Marijuana Enforcement Division whether or not such information would otherwise be protected from the 
disclosure by any constitutional, statutory or common law privilege.
2.  I hereby authorize and request all persons to whom this request is presented having documents relating to or 
concerning the above named applicant to permit a duly appointed agent of the Marijuana Enforcement Division 
to review and copy any such documents, whether or not such documents would otherwise be protected from 
disclosure by any constitutional, statutory, or common law privilege.
3.  If the person to whom this request is presented is a brokerage firm, bank, savings and loan, or other 
financial institution or an officer of the same, I hereby authorize and request that a duly appointed agent of the 
Marijuana Enforcement Division be permitted to review and obtain copies of any and all documents, records 
or correspondence pertaining to me/us, including but not limited to past loan information, notes co-signed by 
me/ us, checking account records, savings deposit records, safe deposit box records, passbook records, and 
general ledger folio sheets.

54



4.  I do hereby make, constitute, and appoint any duly appointed agent of the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement 
Division, my true and lawful attorney in fact for me in my name, place, stead, and on my behalf and for my use 
and benefit: (a) To request, review, copy sign for, or otherwise act for investigative purposes with respect to 
documents and information in the possession of the person to whom this request is presented as I might; (b) 
To name the person or entity to whom this request is presented and insert that person’s name in the appropriate 
location in this request: (c) To place the name of the agent presenting this request in the appropriate location 
on this request.
5.  I grant to said attorney in fact full power and authority to do, take, and perform all and every act and thing 
whatsoever requisite, proper, or necessary to be done, in the exercise of any of the rights and powers herein 
granted, as fully to all intents and purposes as I might or could do if personally present, with full power of 
substitution or revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney in fact, or his substitute or 
substitutes, shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of this power of attorney and the rights and powers 
herein granted.
6.  This power of attorney ends twenty-four (24) months from the date of execution.
7.  The above named applicant has filed with the Colorado Marijuana Licensing Authority an application for a 
Marijuana license. Said applicant understands that it is seeking the granting of a privilege and acknowledges 
that the burden of proving its qualifications for a favorable determination is at all times on the applicant.
8.  I do, for myself, my heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, hereby release, remise, and 
forever discharge the person to whom this request is presented, and his agents and employees from all and 
all manner or actions, causes of action, suits, debts, judgments, executions, claims, and demands whatsoever, 
known or unknown, in law or equity, which the applicant ever had, now has, may have, or claims to have against 
the person to whom this request is being presented or his agents or employees arising out of or by reason of 
complying with the request.
9.  A reproduction of this request by photocopying or similar process shall be for all intents and purposes as 
valid as the original.

Legal Last Name : Erickson

Legal First Name : Micah

Legal Middle Name : Nichole

Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/10/2023

Affirmation of Complete Application

I state under penalty of perjury the above statements and information are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, and this statement is executed with the knowledge that misrepresentation or failure to 
reveal information requested may be deemed sufficient cause for the refusal to issue a marijuana license by 
the State of Colorado. Further, I am aware later discovery of an omission or misrepresentation made in the 
above statements may be grounds for the denial of my renewal application or the revocation of my Colorado 
marijuana license. I am voluntarily submitting this application to the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division 
under oath with full knowledge I may be charged with perjury or other crimes for intentional omissions and 
misrepresentations pursuant to Colorado law. I further consent to any background investigation necessary 
to determine my present and continuing suitability and this consent continues as long as I hold a Colorado 
marijuana license.

I Affirm :  

I affirm that I have submitted a complete application and by selecting the "I Affirm and Accept" button, I 
acknowledge that I am signing this document electronically. I understand that my electronic signature has the 
same legal effect and enforceability as a written signature pursuant to Articles 71 and 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S. I 
declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that the statements made on this document are true and 
complete to the best of my knowledge.

55



I Affirm and Accept :  

Signature : Micah Nichole Erickson

Date : 07/10/2023

Customer Survey

We would like to know your experience with this online application process and if you have suggestions on how 
we can improve it. Please take a few minutes to complete this voluntary questionnaire to help us better serve 
you. (You may skip this survey and still submit your application by clicking the finish button). Thank you.

Please review the options below and tell us why you chose to apply online (please select all that apply):

Convenience :  

Faster Service :  

Time Savings :  

I thought it was the only option :  

Other :  

Please tell us where you learned about the online application process.

Please tell us where you learned about the online application process. : Division renewal notification

On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being not convenient and 5 being very convenient, how convenient was the online 
application for you to complete?

 How convenient was the online application for you to complete? : 5- Very Convenient

On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being hard and 5 being very easy, did you find the online application process easy to 
understand? 

Did you find the online application process easy to understand? : 5- Very easy to understand

On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being unsatisfied and 5 being very satisfied, rate your overall online application 
experience. 

Please rate your overall online application experience. : 5- Very Satisfied

Do you have any comments to help us improve the online application process?

Comments : 

Would you like a team member to contact you about your comments?

Want to be contacted : 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



 

Special Event Liquor License 

NFVCC – Mountain Harvest Festival 

74



 

 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
   

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET: 
 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Consent Agenda: Mountain Harvest Festival Special Event Liquor
License

Samira Vetter, Town Clerk

August 8, 2023
1. All forms have been filled out and submitted in a timely fashion 
to the Town Clerk.

2. Extended street closure has been approved by the Board of 
Trustees

3. All fees have been submitted to the Town Clerk

4. Liquor notices have been hung up in accordance with State Law
at the Town Park and on Grand Avenue.

5. The Police Department has no issues or concerns with the 
issuance of this Special Event Liquor License

6. The Public Works Department had no issues or concerns with 
the issuance of this Special Event Liquor License.

Described in Attachment 1

Approval of the Special Event Liquor License for North Fork Valley
Creative Coalition for Mountain Harvest Festival.

1. Agenda Item 3 from 7/25/23 Regular meeting
2. Certificate of Insurance
3. Liquor Notice Postings

75



 

 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
   

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET: 
 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 3 - SE-2023-06 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest
Festival

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

7.20.23
The NFV Creative Coalition submitted a special event application on June 1, 2023 for the 22nd Annual 
Mountain Harvest Festival, Friday, September 22 - Sunday, September 24, 2023 (Attachment 1 SEP 
MHF 2023 Application). The request includes the use of the Town Park's green space, shelters and 
gazebo; with alcohol, vendors, and street closures beginning on Saturday, September 23, 2023 from 
8AM until 10PM. As required by the Application process a meeting with Town Staff is scheduled for 
9/12/23 at 10AM to coordinate for the event.  
 
Pending the determination of the street closure during this meeting, the NVFCC is prepared to submit 
payment for the total amount of fees in the amount of $625 with a refundable $500 deposit for a total of: 
$1,125. To comply with the provisions of Ordinance 2023-03 §11-1-80 (l), the applicant has provided 
proof of portalets and trash containers for the event (Attachment 2 NFCC MHF Street Closure Letter), 
and has produced a letter from an affected business owner that allows for the storage of the portalet after 
the closure (Attachment 3 Odisea Letter of Support). The NVFCC agrees that an amendment to the fees 
may be required depending upon a final vendor list presented to the Town no later than 9/27/2023.  
 
After reviewing the NVFCC staff letter, staff believes that the event would qualify for an extended street 
closure under §11-1-80 (m) of Ord. 2023-03. The success of the event depends on enough time to setup 
and remove the stage, Staff does not believe that the additional time will unduly burden staff or 
resources, the event is open to the public, and that the applicant has agreed to arrange for the block up 
to Town Hall on the Southside of Grand to remain open until Noon. Staff believes that the applicant has 
given adequate consideration for businesses that operate during the morning hours to continue business 
with minimal operation on Saturday 9/23/2023. 

Total Revenue:
10-32-01 Liquor Licenses = $150
10-32-02 Misc. Permits = $50 Banner Permit + $425 17 hr. Street Closure + $500 Refundable Deposit =
$975; net revenue (less deposit) $475.

In consideration of the application and upon paying the fees and deposits associated with the entire special event application, and after ample time has passed for the
advertisement of alcohol as required by code, the Town Administrator recommends a favorable decision for the entire special event application.

Recommended Motion(s):

I recommend approval of Special Event Application 2023-06 the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival pending the timely payment of fees & deposits associated with the
permit; and the successful outcome of a public hearing for a special events permit with alcohol after adequate notice pursuant to 44-5-106 C.R.S.

Attachment A: NFVCC Special Event Application
Attachment B: NFVCC_MHF Street Closure Letter
Attachment C: Emails Allowing Parking on Southside of Grand
Attachment D: Odisea Letter of Support for Portalet Permission

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



Dear Mayor Bachran, Stefan Wynn & Town Trustees,

The NFVCC is requesting an exception to the time restrictions for the street
closure on Saturday 9/22/23 for the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival.
After an extremely successful event in 2022, we’re looking to repeat and improve
on our new marquee event. We are requesting a closure of the 200 block of
Grand Avenue from 7am until midnight on September 23rd.

The 10 hour limitation does not allow NFVCC enough time for the setup and
breakdown of the stage, sound, and lights as well as the time required by the
bands to set up, soundcheck, perform and breakdown. For our marquee event
we look to bring the biggest and best bands to ever play in Paonia. Bands that
can not fit on the stages available at the Paradise, the Blue Sage or Town Park.
In order to provide the right size stage, PA system, and lighting rigs required by
these acts safely AND successfully the schedule as follows we need a 17 hr
time frame.

7:00 a - 12:00 p Stage, sound & light load in
12:00 - 2:00 p Headliner load in & set up
2:00 - 3:00 p Headliner sound check and pushback.
3:00 - 4:30 p Opener load in & set up
4:30 - 5:30 p Opener Sound Check
6:00 - 7:30 p Opening Act (90 min)
7:30 - 8:00 p Set Change
8:00 - 10:00 p Headliner Act (120 min)
10:00 -12:00 a Stage, sound & light load out & street clean up

All of these times are industry standard with the 4 hours for stage, sound and
light set up being a fairly compressed time frame. The added time at the start of
the day is to provide time to have any cars left on the street the night before, time
to move and to make sure no cars are in the way to hold up the process once

98



that stage arrives. We will place signs by 2pm on Friday the 22nd that will give
notice for the street closures start and end time.

MHF will provide an appropriate number of portable restrooms based on the
industry standard of 1 unit for 150 people. Due to the limitations of the only
vendor of portable restrooms in our area these units will be delivered on the Mon.
9/18 place on Grand Saturday 9/23 and picked Mon. 9/25. Following the event,
once they are full, we can not move them so we have permission from Odesia
Engineering to place them in front of their business until pick up. We feel this
also provides an additional community service to have extra restrooms available
to people visiting downtown businesses on Sunday.

Additionally MHF will provide a dumpster and additional trash/recycling
receptacles for the event. We will also service the existing trash TOP cans
located along Grand Ave.

● We request that the town please service TOP containers on Grand from
1st thru 2nd Street and Town Park on the morning of Friday 9/22.

*In 2022 we arrived to find all of the above receptacles completely full and
overflowing. We did start the weekend in both locations by emptying all of these
receptacles inside our closure area and emptied them before we left.

Finally, we would like to address the street closures' effect on downtown
businesses. While we acknowledge not every business and resident of Paonia
benefits and/or enjoys our event, we believe that this is a small, albeit vocal,
minority of the town. Without question all but three of the businesses on Grand
Ave will tell you that they had their best, or close to their best day of the year
during MHF ‘22. Our intent is to build on this success! The Hwy 133 closure has
had a devastating effect on our downtown businesses during Spring tourist
season. The Fall harvest is critical to our local economy and we intend to support
this effort with the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival.

Sincerely

Amy DeLuca
NFVCC President
Mountain Harvest Festival Coordinator

99



100



1

Stefen Wynn

From: Judd Keinman <juddkleinman@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 8:28 AM
To: Stefen Wynn
Cc: Amy Deluca; Samira V
Subject: Re: NFVCC Special Event Application

Stefen, welcome to town, I look forward to meeting you.  
I would be open to providing some parking spots on the south end of grand until noon on Saturday. We could leave the 
area right up to town hall open. Any signage that is available to communicate this would be very helpful. Especially a 
“Road Closed to Through Traffic” sign to put at 2nd and grand. After noon we will need to start setting elements in that 
area. I also like to leave lots of time for people to remove their vehicles so I would post that they can park until noon but 
we will not schedule our elements to go into that area until 1pm. We will have to have a person posted at 2nd and 
Grand starting at noon to turn people away and open the barricade to let those already parked exit.  
We will have bike barricade for creating our liquor control zone as well as to protect areas like the stage and sound 
board positions. Happy to provide any other information you might need.  
Thanks 
Judd 
 
Judd Kleinman 
  Double Shot Productions 
  SITE map/design/build  
 
(720)320-8987 
juddkleinman@gmail.com 
 
 

On Jul 20, 2023, at 8:13 AM, Stefen Wynn <StefenW@townofpaonia.com> wrote: 
 
Hi Amy,  
  
You’re on it! Thank you very much.  
  
SW 
  

From: Amy DeLuca <cirquepaonia@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 8:40 PM 
To: Stefen Wynn <StefenW@townofpaonia.com>; Judd Keinman <juddkleinman@gmail.com> 
Cc: Samira V <SamiraV@townofpaonia.com> 
Subject: Re: NFVCC Special Event Application 
  
Hi Stefen, 
I'm looping in our Head of Operations Judd Kleinman here so he can help clarify any concerns or 
questions as well. 
  
- I have contacted Lucy Hunter at Odisea, she will send the letter directly to you. 
- We are using the very same map that Chief Larminger approved last year without any changes.   
- Yes, we can absolutely mark some spots on 2nd street for morning customers parking. 

101



2

- In the past the town has provided barricades & "street closure" signs for our use at 2nd and 3rd 
Street(s).  We also put up no-parking signs on Grand the night before to inform folks and eliminate any 
confusion in the morning. If you need images of these let me know.   I believe Judd provided some 
additional barricades to secure the area around the stage, loading area, sound engineers as well as 
creating an emergency fire lane.  
  
Here are many images of the event.  Glad to hear your family will get to enjoy the festival too! 
https://mountainharvestfestival.org 
https://mountainharvestfestival.org/2022-festival-photos/ 
  
Sincerely 
Amy  
  
  
  
  
 
  
  
Amy DeLuca, owner 
Cirque Boutique & Gallery 
Ship: 224 Grand Ave. Suite 5 
Bill:  PO Box 304 
Paonia, CO. 81428 
  
Tue - Sat. 11:30-5:30 
www.cirqueboutiquepaonia.com 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 
  
  
  
On Wed, Jul 19, 2023 at 7:56 PM Stefen Wynn <StefenW@townofpaonia.com> wrote: 

Hi Amy, 
  
I received all of the materials for the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival, and I plan to complete a 
staff report in support of the event as submitted. I plan to start discussing the expectations of Town 
staff in my upcoming Department Head Meetings. I think it will be important that we coordinate our 
staff to ensure that the street closure is communicated adequately to other businesses, and that we’re 
ensuring that our sanitation crews are ready ahead of and during the event. I’m also going to ask Chief 
Laiminger to review the safety & emergency plan with his officers. 
  
Thank you for your efforts in planning and coordinating this event. I truly appreciate the time that 
you’ve spent in getting all of the paperwork together to help understand this event.  
  
I have a couple of requests for you to consider. Is it possible to get a letter from Lucille Hunter at 
Odisea Engineering giving permission to place the portable restrooms in front of their business? I’d like 
to include that letter in the agenda packet, and I think it will help with answer questions ahead of time. 
  

102



3

My final request is more of clarification and regards the street closure.  I’m unsure how this has 
happened in the past, but I plan to direct the street department to install Maintenance of Traffic 
signage with detours and alternate parking for restaurants and shops that may be open during the 
morning hours. Will there be an opportunity to have a few spots open on the 2nd street side of Grand 
Avenue until 10AM? 
  
Again, thank you for getting all of this put together and for coordinating this entire event. I look 
forward to my family participating this year. 
  
In Public Service, 
  
  

<image001.png> Stefen Wynn, M.P.A. 
Paonia Town Administrator 
  
P : (970) 527-4101  
F : (970) 527-4102 
E :StefenW@TownofPaonia.com 
  
214 Grand Ave. 
Paonia, CO 81428 
  
https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/ 
<image002.png><image003.png> <image004.png> 

 

103



1

Stefen Wynn

From: Amy DeLuca <cirquepaonia@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 8:40 PM
To: Stefen Wynn; Judd Keinman
Cc: Samira V
Subject: Re: NFVCC Special Event Application

Hi Stefen, 
I'm looping in our Head of Operations Judd Kleinman here so he can help clarify any concerns or questions as well. 

- I have contacted Lucy Hunter at Odisea, she will send the letter directly to you.
- We are using the very same map that Chief Larminger approved last year without any changes.
- Yes, we can absolutely mark some spots on 2nd street for morning customers parking.
- In the past the town has provided barricades & "street closure" signs for our use at 2nd and 3rd Street(s).  We also put
up no-parking signs on Grand the night before to inform folks and eliminate any confusion in the morning. If you need
images of these let me know.   I believe Judd provided some additional barricades to secure the area around the stage,
loading area, sound engineers as well as creating an emergency fire lane.

Here are many images of the event.  Glad to hear your family will get to enjoy the festival too! 
https://mountainharvestfestival.org 
https://mountainharvestfestival.org/2022-festival-photos/ 

Sincerely 
Amy 

Amy DeLuca, owner 
Cirque Boutique & Gallery 
Ship: 224 Grand Ave. Suite 5 
Bill:  PO Box 304 
Paonia, CO. 81428 

Tue - Sat. 11:30-5:30 
www.cirqueboutiquepaonia.com 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

On Wed, Jul 19, 2023 at 7:56 PM Stefen Wynn <StefenW@townofpaonia.com> wrote: 

104



2

Hi Amy,  

  

I received all of the materials for the 22nd Annual Mountain Harvest Festival, and I plan to complete a staff report in 
support of the event as submitted. I plan to start discussing the expectations of Town staff in my upcoming Department 
Head Meetings. I think it will be important that we coordinate our staff to ensure that the street closure is 
communicated adequately to other businesses, and that we’re ensuring that our sanitation crews are ready ahead of 
and during the event. I’m also going to ask Chief Laiminger to review the safety & emergency plan with his officers.  

  

Thank you for your efforts in planning and coordinating this event. I truly appreciate the time that you’ve spent in 
getting all of the paperwork together to help understand this event.  

  

I have a couple of requests for you to consider. Is it possible to get a letter from Lucille Hunter at Odisea Engineering 
giving permission to place the portable restrooms in front of their business? I’d like to include that letter in the agenda 
packet, and I think it will help with answer questions ahead of time.  

  

My final request is more of clarification and regards the street closure.  I’m unsure how this has happened in the past, 
but I plan to direct the street department to install Maintenance of Traffic signage with detours and alternate parking 
for restaurants and shops that may be open during the morning hours. Will there be an opportunity to have a few spots 
open on the 2nd street side of Grand Avenue until 10AM? 

  

Again, thank you for getting all of this put together and for coordinating this entire event. I look forward to my family 
participating this year.  

  

In Public Service,  

  

  

 

Stefen Wynn, M.P.A. 

Paonia Town Administrator 

  

P : (970) 527-4101   

F : (970) 527-4102  

E : StefenW@TownofPaonia.com 

105



3

214 Grand Ave. 

Paonia, CO 81428

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/

106



1

Stefen Wynn

From: Lucy Hunter <lucy@odiseanet.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 9:03 AM
To: Stefen Wynn
Cc: cirquepaonia@gmail.com; Judd Kleinman
Subject: Mt. Harvest

Hi Stephen, 
 
As the owner of 210 Grand Ave, I have no objections to the Mt. Harvest crew using the parking 
spaces in front of our building for porta-potties over the weekend, to be removed before 9am 
Monday.  I am in full support of this event.  If there is any other way that I can be of help in this 
regard, please let me know. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Lucy Hunter, P.E. | Principal | ODISEA Engineering | m: 970-270-7353  
(she/her/hers)  
 

 
 

107



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

5/23/2023

(970) 765-7156 (970) 249-2225

22543

North Fork Valley Creative Coalition Inc.
PO Box 143
Paonia, CO 81428

A 1,000,000

CP3240175 12/4/2022 12/4/2023 100,000
Excluded
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

LIQUOR LIABILIT 1,000,000

A Directors & Officers CP3240175 12/4/2022 D&O Liability 1,000,000

Civic Club

Town of Paonia
PO Box 460
Paonia, CO  81428

NORTFOR-05 TIFFANYS

Mountain West In & Fin Serv LLC
100 E Victory Way
Craig, CO 81625

Tiffany Sulzen

tiffanys@mtnwst.com

Secura Insurance Company

12/4/2023

X
X

X

108



From: Amy DeLuca
To: Samira V
Subject: Posted
Date: Monday, July 24, 2023 11:43:03 AM

109

mailto:cirquepaonia@gmail.com
mailto:SamiraV@townofpaonia.com


Sent from my iPhone

110



 

 

Town Administrator 

111



Town Board Update | 1 

 

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND 
HOUSING ACTION PLAN 

Town Board Update 
 

Update #4 

August 5, 2023 

Project Overview 

Your consulting team, Urban Rural Continuum (URC) and Ayres Associates, is 
tasked with using data to identify the housing needs and issues in the 
community (Needs Assessment) and developing a plan to help meet that need 
and address the issues (Action Plan).  

What has been completed: 

• Kick-off call with the Town’s project leads.  
• Formation of the Housing Task Force.  
• Housing Task Force Meeting 1 (5/24) – discussed the project, the role of the 

Task Force, schedule, terminology, employer questionnaire and interviews, 
and who was not yet represented by the Task Force. 

• Consultant review of past plans and studies.   
• Housing Task Force Meeting 2 (6/21) – welcomed a few new members to 

the Task Force; reviewed and discussed the Housing Resources document 
(see next item in this list); discussed the Open House including format, 
content, and plan to publicize; reviewed and discussed initial data and 
issues; reviewed and discussed initial list of actions; and brainstormed 
Targeted Outreach efforts.  

• Existing Public Housing Resources document. This is on the Town’s website 
and should be shared widely to be sure existing resources are utilized. It 
also includes ways for community members to help.   

• Employer Questionnaire for employers and those who are self-employed.  
We received input from local employers representing hundreds of jobs. 

• Interviews with realtors, property managers, and builders. 
• Initial List of Strategies compiled. 
• Community-wide Open House (7/13) – Thirty-seven community members 

attended and voted on their most pressing housing issues and the most 
favored actions from the refined list of strategies. See attached Summary of 
the Open House. 

112

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/government/town-plans-maps/housing-needs-assessment-and-action-plan


Town Board Update | 2 

• Housing Task Force Meeting 3 (8/1) – Debriefed the Open House event and reviewed the draft 
Housing Needs Assessment. This document is part one of the project, with part two being the 
Housing Action Plan. The Needs Assessment includes data and analysis of demographics and 
economics, the housing inventory, and the for sale and rental market. It also includes a summary of 
input received from local employers responding to the Employer Questionnaire and information 
gathered during interviews. The consultant team will plan to have the draft Housing Needs 
Assessment ready by August 15th for your review prior to it being on the August 22nd regular Board 
meeting agenda.      

 

What is in progress:  

• Targeted outreach will be wrapped up soon.  
• Refine list of strategies 
• The draft Housing Action Plan is in progress based on the draft Housing Needs Assessment, input 

from the Open House, and all other information gathered, and outreach conducted thus far.   
• Housing Task Force meeting 4 planned for August 31 to review the Draft Housing Action Plan.   
• Optional add-ons that were approved by the Board at the 7/25 regular meeting.  
• Keeping the project webpage up-to-date.  
• Continued coordination with Master Plan team.  

113

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/government/town-plans-maps/housing-needs-assessment-and-action-plan


 

 

Police Chief 

114



115



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   06/01/23
Agency Loctn Dsp
PPD PPD

Time Nature Address
16:35:24 CRIM MISCHIEF GRAND AVE; a, Paonia, CO
19:30:21 RESTR/PROT ORDR 2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/02/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:10:43 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/03/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:42:25 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3

10:04:34 Disturbance

Address
MINNESOTA CREEK RD & DRY GULCH RD, 
Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UTL

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/04/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:39:05 911/hangup PPD PPD
16:57:35 911/hangup

Address
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO 
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/05/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:48:53 Information

Address
 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/06/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:30:15 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
14:44:35 Information

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

116



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   06/08/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:22:31 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW
20:44:05 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
23:13:31 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GERMAN CREEK LN, Paonia, CO 
4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   06/09/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:09:27 Juvenile Prob

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/10/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
01:00:12 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
22:00:18 Noise Complaint

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
ALDER CT, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/11/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
19:46:20 DOMESTIC PPD PPD   A
22:18:34 ALARM

Address
ALDER DR, Paonia, CO 
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/12/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:41:05 Disturbance

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/13/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:18:51 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
CRAWFORD RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

15:39:44 DEATH INVESTGTN POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/16/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:57:05 Code Enforce PPD PPD
11:11:51 Code Enforce PPD PPD
11:18:06 Code Enforce

Address
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

12:30:10 DEATH INVESTGTN ALDER DR, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

WW
WW
WW

117



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/19/23
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:23:10 SHOPLIFTING 2ND ST, Paonia, CO  PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/20/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:35:51 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW 
09:04:18 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
09:55:16 Wanted Person PPD PPD    A

12:03:34 Resisting PPD PPD    A

13:41:56 Code Enforce PPD PPD
13:54:32 Code Enforce PPD PPD
14:34:20 Code Enforce

Address
NIAGARA AVE, Paonia, CO
1ST ST, Paonia, CO
STAHL RD & SAMUEL WADE RD, 
Paonia, CO
STAHL RD & SAMUEL WADE RD, 
Paonia, CO
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO 
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   06/21/23
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:02:19 Information PPD PPD
12:36:06 VIN INSPECTION

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
MEADOWBROOK BLVD; PPD PPD

13:07:03 Traffic Stop
 Paonia, CO
5TH ST & BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD  CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   06/22/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:39:16 Code Enforce

Address
PPD PPD WW

09:27:16 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD
15:06:16 Traffic Stop PPD PPD  CIT
18:25:27 Information

BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO 
CLARK AVE, Paonia, CO 
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   06/23/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:30:01 CRIM MISCHIEF

Address
4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

WW
WW
WW

118



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 4 of 4

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 06/01/23` and `00:00:01 06/30/23`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   06/24/23
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
00:15:15 ANIMAL CONTROL MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
07:14:17 VIN INSPECTION MEADOWBROOK CT, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/26/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:28:25 THEFT

Address
MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

19:09:47 ANIMAL CONTROL MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/27/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
07:24:37 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
4190 LN, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   06/28/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:31:06 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
22:18:22 TrafficAccident

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
5TH ST & GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   06/29/23
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:25:40 Disturbance PPD PPD
15:20:53 DOMESTIC PPD PPD   A
19:55:28 Traffic Stop

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST & GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD  CIT 

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Total reported: 51

A-3, CIT-3, UTL-1, VW-1, WW-6

ARREST=A
CIT=CITATION
UTL=UNABLE TO LOCATE
VW= VERBAL WARNING
WW-WRITTEN WARNING

119



 

Resolution 12-2023 

120



 

 

121



 

 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
   

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET: 
 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 1 - Resolution 12-2023 Clarifying NFVAAC
Organization and Duties

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

8.2.2023
On September 8, 2022 the Board passed Resolution 12-2022 
establishing the NFVAAC, providing for organization of the committee 
and adding expected duties. On July 11, 2023, the Board passed 
Resolution 10-2023 Adopting Rules Concerning the Activities of 
Committees Established by the Board of Trustees. After reviewing the 
resolutions, Res. 12-2022 needed clarifications to match the intent of 
Res. 10-2023. The Town Administrator reviewed Res. 12-2022 and 
recommended clarifications to the organization of the committee as 
well as the duties of the committee. Org. Structure - only advisory for 
operations and budgetary needs; Duties - TA is liaison between all 
parties; reporting required for normal budgetary cycle through the TA 
and Treasurer for inclusion in Town Budget to the Board; changed 
'master plan' to 'capital improvement plan'; require that CIP be kept in 
Town Hall; and clarified 2nd meeting in March and 1st meeting in 
September for reports to the Board. 

N/A

I move to approve Resolution 12-2023, a Resolution of the
Town of Paonia, Colorado, Clarifying the Organization and
Duties of the North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee

Attachment A: Res. 12-2023 PROPOSED
Attachment B: Res. 10-2023
Attachment C: Res. 12-2022

122



Res 12-2023 NFVAAC Clarification  

RESOLUTION 12-2023  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, CLARIFYING THE 

ORGANIZATION AND DUTIES OF THE NORTH FORK VALLEY AIRPORT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”) has a seventy-five percent (75%) undivided ownership 
interest in the North Fork Valley Airport (7V2) (the “Airport”), and Delta County, by and through its 
Board of County Commissioners (the “County”) has a twenty-five percent (25%) undivided 
ownership interest in the Airport; 
 
WHEREAS, the operational Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and supplement between the 
Town and the County,  dated September 21, 2009, as to the management, maintenance, income 
and capital improvements at the Airport remains in full effect; 
 
WHEREAS, the Town established the North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee (the 
“Committee”) on the 8th day of September, 2022, pursuant to Resolution No. 12-2022, for the 
purpose of advising the Town Board of Trustees on matters related to the Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town continues to desire to have user input with reference to operational and 
administration issues arising from of the Airport, and wishes to clarify the organization and duties 
of the Committee by this Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, 
 

1. The North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee (the “Committee”) shall consist 
of three (3) persons with interest in the North Fork Valley Airport (7V2) (the “Airport”), 
and one (1) person representing the Town of Paonia (the “Town”); the Fixed Base 
operator (FBO) at 7V2 shall be an ex-officio member of the Committee; 

 
2. Application of interest to become a member of said Committee shall be made in writing 

to the Paonia Board of Trustees; 
 

3. Each of the three (3) airport interested Committee members shall serve a term of four 
(4) years. At the initiation of the Committee, two (2) members shall be appointed for four 
(4) years and one (1) shall be appointed for two (2) years to stagger the terms. The 
Town-appointed member shall be appointed, per any need, following election cycles; 
 

4. The Chair of the Committee shall be elected by its members; 
 

5. The Committee shall only advise the Town in matters related to the operations and 
budgetary needs of the Airport; 
 

6. The Committee is an advisory body, and has absolutely no authority to bind, or act 

123



Res 12-2023 NFVAAC Clarification  

on behalf of, the Town. 
 
Duties of the North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee: 

 
A. The Town Administrator shall be the liaison between the Committee, the Town, 

and the County on airport matters including information sharing and planning 
needed for the Airport; 
 

B. The Committee shall report any budgetary requirements at the Airport to the Town 
Administrator and the Town Treasurer during the normal budget cycle so that 
budgetary needs can be timely presented to the Paonia Board of Trustees; 
 

C. The Committee shall create a five (5) and ten (10) year Capital Improvement Plan for 
the Airport and keep it on file at the Town Hall for the Town of Paonia; 
 

D. The Committee shall furnish a report to the Paonia Board of Trustees for the second 
meeting in March and the first meeting in September of each year, and may furnish 
additional reports as may be necessary; 
 

E. The Committee shall conduct tours of the Airport with new Paonia Trustees and 
other interested parties as to the ownership, operation, maintenance, and 
capital improvements required at the Airport. 

 
 

ADOPTED this 8th day of August 2023, by the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia. 
 
 
 

 
By:   Date:   
 Mary Bachran, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 Samira K. Vetter, Town Clerk 
 
 

124



125



126



127



128


	Packet Modifications 08082023
	Packet Modifications Sheet 08082023.pdf
	August 2023 TA Report (003).pdf
	06.23002 fs10.pdf
	ToP_extension_12_31_2022_SW 8.6.2023.pdf

	AgendaPacket-Regular Town Board Meeting-August 8, 2023 6.30 PM.pdf
	Top
	1.	Consent Agenda
	Minutes Title Page
	0711Reg Meet Min
	0725_RegMeet
	Disbursements Title Page
	Disbursments
	02 08 Billing LL DWRF
	RMJ Renewal
	Valley High LLC Packet_Redacted
	MHF Title Page
	NFVCC MHF Packet

	First Street Fence Encroachment – Town Attorney Update
	Town Administrator
	Town Admin TItle

	PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND HOUSING ACTION PLAN
	2023.08.04 TB Housing Project Update 4

	Police Chief
	Police Chief TItle
	Progress Report
	BLOTTER

	Public Works Director
	Resolution 12 - 2023 Clarifying North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee and Liaison
	Resolution 12-2023 Title

	Appointing Town Administrator as liaison to the North Fork Valley Airport Advisory Committee
	Appointment of TA as Liason
	Agenda Item No. 1 Staff Report and Attachments for Res. 12-2023 (NCB rev.)

	Reports
	Bottom


